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52 2%
UP

Annual Sales 
Revenue

101%
UP

Net Profit 
After Tax

Years of 
Turnaround



OUR FINANCES

40 52%+

$

UP

Sales Revenue 
growth

Years industry 
experience

40
Major projects 
completed

3.02
Million Turnaround

Net profit

41.4 53%
UP

SKS Revenue 
growth

$ $0.85
Million EBITDA Million Annual Revenue 

and other income

50% 233%
UP

Cash and cash 
equivalents

$3.26 
Raisings to support 
cash & growth

ULG Revenue 
growth
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OUR VISION
Deliver truly seamless electrical and energy efficient 
products and solutions, designed for exceptional 
business performance.

With support services around Australia, we offer 
clients the opportunity to benefit from our extensive 
industry experience, where we provide a range of 
related services across the one solution.

OUR DIFFERENCE

OUR REACH
Enevis is customer-orientated with a national footprint 
of seven offices throughout Australia, recently SKS 
Technologies has also expanded into South Australia 
and Queensland.

Enevis employ over 100 people across Australia, 
working collaboratively with industry partners to find 
and deploy creative market solutions.

Audiovisual

Street Lighting & Columns

Electrical

Energy Rebate Auditing

Architectural Lighting

Hospitality

Infrastructure

Defence

Legal

Auditoriums

Data & Recovery Centres

Multimedia Display Environments

Collaboration & Huddle Spaces

Schools

Sporting Complex

Commercial Greenhouses

Board & Conference Rooms

Horticultural

Industrial

Education

Retail

Health

Government

Commercial

LED Lighting

Immersive AV Solutions

Lighting Controls

Communications

Floodlighting

The Enevis business delivers solutions through the complementary divisions of SKS Technologies (SKS), Urban Lighting 
Group (ULG) and Enegrow.

Audiovisual communications and 
electrical solutions.Experienced 
provider of business-critical 
communication systems, where 
we design, deliver and support.

OUR MARKET-LEADING SOLUTIONS 

OUR COMPANIES

SKS TECHNOLOGIES
Architectural lighting, columns and 
technology solutions.Experienced 
specialist in the lighting design, 
engineering and manufacture of 
intelligent lighting products.

Intelligent horticultural growlights.
Specialist installation and support 
solutions for intelligent 
glasshouse lighting systems, 
improving yield and quality.

URBAN LIGHTING GROUP ENEGROW

Enevis develop, source and distribute current and 
emerging technology products and solutions. 

We have a deep understanding of our key markets, 
supplying an extensive range of electrical and energy 
efficient technologies, products and services. 

With a strong focus around research and development 
the company remains at the forefront of industry trends 
continually expanding existing product ranges.

Enevis integrates complimentary technology products 
and services across a variety of both markets and 
project environments.

Enevis is built around passionate people, their 
enthusiasm, their ability, and their commitment to 
maintain and build on both client satisfaction and the 
overall success of the business. 

OUR CULTURE

OUR PRODUCTS &  SERVICES

OUR MARKETS

OUR ENVIRONMENTS
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The Enevis Board is pleased to report a 

full year net profit after tax of $0.02 

million.  While this is an essentially 

break-even result, it is also a telling 

turnaround effort when compared 

with a loss of $3 million last year.  

Underpinning this result is a significant 

sales revenue increase of 52% from 

$27.1 million in FY18 to $41.2 million, 

which is slightly above expectation.  

Similarly, EBITDA of $0.85 million 

compared with a loss of $2.2 million 

the previous year completes the picture 

of a business that has fixed its 

fundamentals and is poised for growth.

I am pleased to note that during the turnaround process 

our focus on sales revenue did not waver.  We have 

managed to remediate and consolidate our business 

whilst keeping our eye on the market and winning 

significant projects with blue-chip customers.  Increased 

sales revenue of 35% from the non-Lumex 

operations is clear evidence of this effort.  The board’s 

attention now is firmly on achieving sustainable sales 

growth over the longer term, combined with the 

maintenance of rigorous cost control and an appropriate 

level of overhead cost.

Our turnaround activity included streamlining systems 

and processes, and a review and re-organisation of our 

people to equip the business with the right skills, 

experience and networks to take advantage of new 

prospects.  Tighter inventory management, particularly 

given the acquisition of Lumex stock, was also a major 

focus with targets for further reduction over the next half 

year through more rigorous procurement processes.

In August, Enevis raised $3.26 million (net of costs) to 

fund its expanded working capital requirements.  

Borrowings increased from $3.73 million to $4.56 million 

to support sales growth, and cash at bank increased 

from $3,000 at the end of the previous year to $0.68 

million as at 30 June 2019.

During the year, we also finalised a pressing legacy issue 

relating to consultancy advice received on an R&D tax 

rebate claimed in 2015 and 2016, which was misleading 

and which we are now repaying to the Australian Taxa-

tion Office.  Ultimately, it became necessary to take legal 

action to recover the considerable fees paid for this 

advice.  I am pleased to report the action was successful, 

with costs awarded to us and an order in our favour that 

the defendant repay a substantial amount of the fee.  We 

expect to recover these monies in the current financial 

year.
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Our audiovisual business, SKS Technologies, expanded 

with its first full year of trading in the South Australian 

market and an operational performance that exceeded 

expectations.  Break-even was achieved in six months 

rather than the forecast ten months and revenue was 

ahead of budget. 

The business also entered the Queensland market giving 

it a truly national footprint and an ability to service 

customers across the nation.  I am happy today that 

approximately 93% of work and 86% of revenue 

emanates from existing customers, which is testimony to 

the excellent team of people we have within SKS 

Technologies.  The credibility of the business is further 

evidenced by the calibre of the major projects 

successfully completed over the year such as Joan 

Kirner Women’s and Children’s Hospital, Melbourne State 

Library and global film production studio Mill Film.
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Earlier this calendar year, Enevis was selected by US 

grow lighting manufacturer LumiGrow to exclusively 

market its sophisticated LED grow lighting solutions in 

Australia, New Zealand and parts of Asia. The evergreen 

contract enables Enevis to leverage its existing skill base 

to enter the protected cropping markets and to this end, 

we established a wholly owned subsidiary called 

Enegrow to supply, install, commission and maintain 

LumiGrow’s sophisticated product suite of lighting and 

associated software in protected cropping and other 

horticultural projects. This is an exciting opportunity for 

Enevis to become part of the next revolution in 

horticultural development with benefits to growers, in 

yield increases, quality improvements, and higher 

returns for farmers, making the case for grow lighting 

very compelling.

In July this year, we participated in the Protected 

Cropping Australia 2019 Conference in Queensland with 

a stand promoting our lighting expertise and the 

LumiGrow product suite. Since then we have had great

interest in the LumiGrow technology, with a number of 

orders fulfilled and a strong pipeline of large projects 

identified for our development team. Having selected 

LumiGrow as their preferred lighting partner after an 

international search, we continue to work with Nectar 

Farms on their proposed 20-hectare glasshouse which is 

planned for construction near Stawell in regional Victoria. 

When completed it will be the largest greenhouse in the 

Southern Hemisphere. I look forward to keeping you up 

to date on our progress in this space.

The culmination of the last financial year draws a line 

under our turnaround process and enables us to

concentrate on new opportunities such as that delivered 

by the LumiGrow supply agreement. Enegrow broadens 

the scope of markets in which we can operate and find 

new sources of revenue. Enevis, and its careful 

integration of businesses, makes the possibility a reality 

with an existing bank of skills, relationships, business 

acumen and resources to extract full value from our 

current cost base.

The focus for Urban Lighting Group this year was on 

integrating the Lumex acquisition, bringing people, 

product ranges, processes and projects together to 

leverage the synergies and upscale the business.  New 

distribution rights were secured for high-end European 

commercial lighting product ranges and we built our 

intellectual property assets with the development and 

introduction of a product range under our own architec-

tural lighting brand, Forlite, to fill a gap in the market for 

high quality, efficient architectural lighting.  A continuing 

strong order book has necessitated further investment in 

inventory and driven a process to bolster sales and 

marketing resources to capitalise on an expanding 

marketplace.  Again, the quality of the projects we win is 

evident in the work we completed for Latrobe University, 

Queensland Rail and Homestyle Age Care.

SKS TECHNOLOGIES

URBAN LIGHTING GROUP

ENEGROW



Over the year we have pursued a 

four-pronged strategy to consolidate our 

operations while we take advantage of 

opportunities to grow the business.

After a turnaround financial year, I want to thank our 

employees for their hard work and loyalty. Without our 

people we cannot innovate, develop, sell or prosper. I 

know that the strength of our team was a critical factor 

in the success of our turnaround. I have also learnt from 

customers who cite our people and the service they 

deliver as a key reason, combined with our technology, 

for the award of contracts to us. It’s no coincidence that 

across Enevis repeat business  underpins a large portion 

of our revenue, and I sincerely thank all of our 

employees for their talent and dedication to our clients.

I would also like to thank fellow directors and 

management for the role they have played in turning the 

business around. It has been a stellar effort. Enevis is 

now well placed to take advantage of its market leading 

products, technologies and services, the efficiencies it 

derives from the integration of its businesses, its 

established relationships and its expertise in growing 

markets to increase shareholder value in a sustainable 

way. We look forward to the next phase of the business 

as we consolidate our business improvement and take 

advantage of markets which are both large and receptive

to our technology and our people. Lastly, I want to thank 

our shareholders for their loyalty and commitment. I look 

forward to the challenges and opportunities of 2019 and 

to sharing our success with you.

We have continued to work towards our objective to

build a national presence with the expansion of SKS 

Technologies into South Australia and Queensland. We

have identified new opportunities to develop the 

business with the LumiGrow agreement and the 

subsequent work underway to secure new contracts in 

the horticultural growing lighting space. We have made 

process improvements across the business to achieve 

greater efficiencies, and we have retained our focus on 

customer care and ensuring we build relationships that 

ensure new work form existing customers. This strategic 

platform will facilitate the activities of the year ahead as 

we continue to grow and improve our operations.

STRATEGY
2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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Peter Jinks
Chairman and Managing Director
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Enevis delivers energy efficient technology solutions, through the creative 
manufacture of hardware and installation support services. With strong 
capabilities in servicing national customers, Enevis provides innovative LED 
lighting products, energy consumption cost benefit and rebate analysis, 
audio visual, communications and electrical solutions to the commercial, 
industrial and retail markets.
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INDUSTRY LEADER
A focused provider of electrical and 
energy efficient technologies, products 
and services.

STRONG GROWTH
Expanding electrical and energy efficient  
technology company working 
collaboratively with industry partners to 
find and deploy creative market 
solutions.

EXPERIENCE
Extensive experience in providing expert 
customer advice, with strong support 
services around Australia. 

INNOVATION

Defined by our pioneering spirit, it’s 
our mission to seek out and adopt 
creative electrical and energy efficient 
technologies.
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HIGHLIGHTS

The Board was excited to refresh the 

company name which more 

accurately describes the expanded 

focus within the energy 

efficiency-orientated technologies 

and services sector, and aligns with 

the future strategic direction of the 

company. ENERGY WITH VISION.

1

SKS expansion into the South 

Australian and Queensland market 

with recruitment of experienced 

and proven management team to 

extend Australian footprint, with a 

strong pipeline of business 

opportunities. 

2

Growth capital raising. Company 

pleased with support from new 

shareholders. Proceeds from equity 

raise used to fund the working 

capital requirements of the 

expanding business needs.

3
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Acquisition of additional lighting and 

energy product experience across 

Australia. The successful integration of 

Lumex, now forming part of the Urban 

Lighting Group, marks the 

commencement of the next phase of 

the group’s growth agenda with a focus 

to leverage its combined 

expertise in audio visual, lighting, 

solutions architecture and deliver 

energy efficient outcomes to its 

customers. Lumex with its energy 

efficiency LED lighting and controls, 

extends to include opportunities in the 

highly attractive lighting market and 

increases in company cross-selling 

synergies. The business aims to extract 

further savings through consolidating 

supplier relationships and product 

sourcing, expected to drive margin 

performance.

Turnaround yields profit in FY19. Mr Peter 

Jinks said, “We are experiencing demand to 

undertake projects of an increasing size 

and complexity.  Furthermore, cross 

divisional capabilities within the group have 

delivered a competitive edge, as evidenced 

through recent project wins which utilised 

the full spectrum of the group’s products 

and services”.

5

4
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ENEGROW
INTELLIGENT HORTICULTURAL GROWLIGHTS

NEWLY FORMED DEDICATED BUSINESS



Selected by US horticultural grow lighting 
manufacturer Lumigrow, Enegrow now 
markets these intelligent LED growlights 
with wireless control in Australia, New 
Zealand and parts of Asia.

Enegrow greenhouse grow light solutions 
are comprised of LED hardware and 
cloud-based software for intelligent 
large-scale glasshouses, research facilities 
and horticultural applications. All solutions 
are supported with both Enegrow 
installation and ongoing servicing and 
maintenance support.

The agreement is a natural extension for 
Enevis, in terms of its strategy to diversify 
and leverage new lighting technology and 
associated software. An exciting new 
market with forecasted growth 
opportunities, where controlled 
environment horticulture lighting delivers 
greater consistency, yield and efficiencies 
for growers. Lumigrow’s value proposition, 
growth through connectivity, includes 
partnering with the world’s largest growers 
and leading research institutions to both 
differentiate themselves and understand 
how light can be used to optimise crop 
production.

Enevis’ newly formed subsidiary 
Enegrow, enters protected 
cropping market providing 
SmartLED grow light solutions.
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ENEVIS provides electrical and energy efficient 

technology and solutions, with support services 

around Australia. We offer clients the opportunity to 

benefit from our extensive industry experience, where 

we provide a range of related services across the one 

solution. 

Enevis work directly with consultants, builders, architects and clients to 

provide design, engineering and installation expertise. Our experienced staff 

include industry certified installation technicians committed to providing 

exceptional service ensuring all projects are delivered with the highest 

quality. 

PROJECT 
INSIGHTS
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VICTORIA STATE LIBRARY

Large media wall and fully integrated audiovisual equipment installation.

SKS TECHNOLOGIES, VICTORIA

JOAN KIRNER WOMEN’S’ & CHILDREN’S’
 HOSPITAL

Complete audiovisual installation, with interactive video wall.

SKS TECHNOLOGIES, VICTORIA



Enevis Limited 2019 Full Year Report19

BRIDGEWAY

Electrical and communications installation.

SKS TECHNOLOGIES, SOUTH AUSTRALIA

LA TROBE UNIVERSITY

Supply of architectural columns with a premium paint finish.

URBAN LIGHTING GROUP, VICTORIA



MILL FILM
Electrical and communications installation.
SKS TECHNOLOGIES, SOUTH AUSTRALIA
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PETER joined the Enevis board and management team 

in October 2012, and has specific responsibility for 

operations and administration, and he became 

Executive Chairman and Managing Director in March 

2016.

Peter has more than 40 years’ industry experience as a 

leader, manager, industry NECA council member, and 

executor of high level policy, resource, operational and 

strategic visions. Peter has vast experience in technical 

services, specifically in electrical, data, audiovisual 

consultation and management.

Peter co-founded the company KLM Group Limited with 

his brother Greg Jinks in 1981 and was Managing 

Director until August 2012. The brothers built KLM 

Group with an enviable reputation as one of Australia’s 

foremost electrical and communications provider. KLM 

is acknowledged as a company with a technological 

edge which services the Construction, Defence, 

Government, Financial, Commercial and Infrastructure 

markets.

KLM was a small commercial electrical contracting

business that in 20 years grew to achieve revenues of 

$36 million in 2003 when it listed on the ASX. By 2010 

KLM had a turnover of $160 million and it was then 

acquired by ASX-listed Programmed.

GREG was appointed to the Enevis Board and 

Management team in October 2012. Greg has specific 

responsibility for Enevis strategic and business 

development.

Greg has more than 35 years’ experience in the

telecommunications sector particularly in electrical, 

data cabling networks, voice, laser, microwave wireless 

products and the supply of high tech audiovisual 

installations.

Co-founding KLM Group as a small commercial 

electrical contracting business with his brother Peter in 

1981, the pair grew the business to have a turnover of 

$160 million in 2010 when it was acquired by ASX-listed 

Programmed. Greg played a pivotal role with his 

involvement in company’s industry and government 

accreditations including vendor relationship 

management. KLM had 800+ employees and has 

become one of Australia’s major communications and 

data network infrastructure contractors.

Greg is involved in current and emerging technologies 

which complements Enevis' growth strategy, focusing 

on core service offerings while integrating superior 

technological products.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN &
MANAGING DIRECTOR

 PETER JINKS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

GREG JINKS



TERENCE has 25 years’ experience as an Executive 

Director of Ausfine Foods Pty Ltd, an importer and 

exporter of meat and dairy products.

He was previously a Director of Ansearch Limited, 

Richmond Football Club, Windermere Child and Family 

Services (not-for-profit), Position Partners Pty Ltd (Civil 

Construction & Infrastructure Services) and ESCA 

Australia Pty Ltd (Medical Research Stem Cells).

Terence has extensive knowledge and experience in 

purchasing, sales and marketing, import and export 

logistics, accounting and financial management, foreign 

currency hedging and mitigation and banking facility 

negotiation.

THOMAS holds a B.Comm, LLB (UNSW) degree and 

worked as a Corporate Lawyer at Freehills in Sydney 

and as a Corporate Advisor at Australian Bank in 

Melbourne. Thomas was Joint Managing Director of 

Godfrey’s before being appointed Chief Executive 

Officer and Managing Director of Godfreys Group 

Limited.

Thomas joined the Board in September 2017, and 

brings a strong corporate background combined with 

an extensive business network, which will be invaluable 

to the group in the years ahead.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

TERENCE GRIGG
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

THOMAS KRULIS

FROM DAY ONE, WE'VE BEEN A CUSTOMER-CENTRIC COMPANY. WE GO THROUGH 

AN IN-DEPTH DISCOVERY WITH EACH CUSTOMER TO FIND WAYS WE CAN DELIVER 

SOLUTIONS THAT PROVIDE REAL VALUE. WE PUT OUR CUSTOMERS FIRST, AND 

THEY REWARD US WITH THEIR LOYALTY. WE HAVE A GREAT TEAM OF PEOPLE WHO 

MAKE THIS ALL A REALITY.  

- PETER JINKS



CORPORATE
DIRECTORY
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DIRECTORS ENEVIS REGISTERED OFFICE

PETER JINKS

GREG JINKS

TERENCE GRIGG

TOM KRULIS

53 Stanley Street

West Melbourne

Victoria 3003

T: (03) 9289 5020

W: www.enevis.com.au

E: info@enevis.com.au

SHARE REGISTRY
Computershare Investor Services

452 Johnston Street

Abbotsford, Victoria 3067

GPO Box 2975

Melbourne Victoria 3001

Investor Enquiries 1300 850 505

T: (03) 9415 4000

AUSTRALIAN BUSINESS 
NUMBER
24 004 554 929

SECRETARY
Paul Miller

AUDITOR
Pitcher Partners

SOLICITORS
K&L Gates

525 Collins Street

Melbourne

Victoria 3000

T: (03) 9640 4354

W: www.klgates.com

Turnaround yields profit in FY19. Mr Peter 

Jinks said, “We are experiencing demand to 

undertake projects of an increasing size 

and complexity.  Furthermore, cross 

divisional capabilities within the group have 

delivered a competitive edge, as evidenced 

through recent project wins which utilised 

the full spectrum of the group’s products 

and services”.
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Selected by US horticultural grow lighting 
manufacturer Lumigrow, Enegrow now 
markets these intelligent LED growlights 
with wireless control in Australia, New 
Zealand and parts of Asia.

Enegrow greenhouse grow light solutions 
are comprised of LED hardware and 
cloud-based software for intelligent 
large-scale glasshouses, research facilities 
and horticultural applications. All solutions 
are supported with both Enegrow 
installation and ongoing servicing and 
maintenance support.

The agreement is a natural extension for 
Enevis, in terms of its strategy to diversify 
and leverage new lighting technology and 
associated software. An exciting new 
market with forecasted growth 
opportunities, where controlled 
environment horticulture lighting delivers 
greater consistency, yield and efficiencies 
for growers. Lumigrow’s value proposition, 
growth through connectivity, includes 
partnering with the world’s largest growers 
and leading research institutions to both 
differentiate themselves and understand 
how light can be used to optimise crop 
production.
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The names of each of the directors of the company in 

office during or since the end of the financial year are set 

out below, together with their qualifications, experience 

and special responsibilities are shown below.

Peter is Managing Director and Chairman of the Company 

and has specific responsibility for operations and 

administration. Peter co-founded the KLM Group with 

Greg Jinks in 1981 and has been involved in the 

management of the business from its inception. He has 

over thirty plus years experience in technical services, 

specifically in electrical, data and communication

consultation and management. Peter was crucial to the 

positioning of the KLM Group as one of Australia’s major

communications and data network infrastructure 

contractors.

Peter was appointed as non-executive director and 

chairman in October 2012 and appointed as Managing 

Director on 8 March 2016. Peter Jinks has not been a 

director of any other listed companies during past three 

years.

The directors present their report 

together with the financial report of the 

consolidated entity consisting of Enevis 

Limited and the entities it controlled, for 

the financial year ended 30 June 2019 

and auditor’s report thereon.
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Greg is Executive Director of the Company and has 

specific responsibility for strategy and business 

development. Greg was a cofounder of the KLM Group 

with Peter Jinks, and was a key driver of a business that 

became one of Australia’s major communications and 

data network infrastructure contractors. Greg has more 

than twenty-five plus years experience in the

telecommunications sector particularly in the area of 

cabling and infrastructure, voice and laser and 

microwave wireless products.

Greg was appointed as director of the Company in 

October 2012. Greg Jinks has not been a director of any 

other listed companies during past three years.

PETER JINKS
MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHAIRMAN

GREG JINKS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

2019 ANNUAL REPORT

DIRECTORS’ 
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Paul is a Chartered Accountant with more than 25 years 

of financial experience having been employed by the 

chartered accountancy firm PricewaterhouseCoopers in 

Australia and London for six years and has worked in a 

variety of finance and accounting based roles in both 

listed and unlisted companies. Paul held the position of 

Deputy Chief Financial Officer for Pharmaxis Ltd (an ASX 

listed entity) where he worked for 10 years with 

responsibility for all aspects of operational financial and

tax management for the group.

Paul was appointed as company secretary of the 

Company on 24 October 2017.

PAUL MILLER
COMPANY SECRETARY

Thomas Krulis holds a B.Comm, LLB (UNSW) degree and 

worked as a Corporate Lawyer at Freehills in Sydney and 

as a Corporate Advisor at Australian Bank (now Australia 

and New Zealand Banking Group Ltd) in Melbourne.

Thomas was Joint Managing Director of Godfrey’s before 

being appointed Chief Executive Officer and Managing 

Director of Godfreys Group Limited in November 2014. He 

later held a non-executive director position until his 

departure in March 2017. He is a Director of a number of 

privately held companies, including PetStock.

Thomas was appointed as a director of the Company on 

20 September 2017. Thomas Krulis has not been a 

director of any other listed companies during past three 

years.

THOMAS KRULIS
NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Terence has 25 years experience as an Executive 

Director of Ausfine Foods Pty Ltd, an importer and 

exporter of meat and dairy products.

Terence was previously a Director of Ansearch Limited, 

Richmond Football Club, Windermere Child and Family 

Services (not for profit), Position Partners Pty Ltd (Civil 

Construction & Infrastructure Services) and ESCA 

Australia Pty Ltd (Medical Research Stem Cells).

Terence was appointed as director of the Company on 31 

January 2017. Terence Grigg is also the Chairman and 

Non-executive Director of The Love Group Global Ltd an 

ASX listed entity.

TERENCE GRIGG
NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Enevis Limited 2019 Full Year Report28



Enevis Limited 2019 Full Year Report29

The investments that were made in building up inventory to 
support customer demands and lead times, the retention and 
receivable cycles within the SKS business and the investments 
made in right sizing trade and other payables, following a build 
up caused by a significant customer impairment event in the 
prior year, have resulted in a negative cash outflow from 
operating activities.

The company has a clear focus to achieve a positive cashflow 
outcome in the year ahead. Following a management and
operational restructuring in our lighting division progress has 
been made to rationalise our inventory holdings and ongoing 
work across the group on rationalising overhead costs remains 
a priority.

Full year sales continue to grow significantly with group 
trading revenues of $41,186,567 up 52% on the $27,150,403 
in the previous corresponding period from the continuing 
business operations of the Company. The consolidated group 
made a profit after tax of $19,167 for the year ended 30 June 
2019 compared to a loss of $3,008,917 in the previous 
corresponding period.

On 1 August 2018, the Company completed the acquisition of 
the Lumex Electrical business and assets under the Asset Sale
Agreement between Scholz Industries Pty Ltd and Urban 
Lighting Group Pty Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of Enevis 
Limited. The Lumex business adds significantly to the Groups 
product portfolio with its energy efficiency LED lighting and 
controls and brought an established revenue base and 
opportunities to leverage synergies across the groups 
customer base.

The sales growth in SKS Technologies Pty Ltd (our audio visual 
and electrical division) continues and has been driven by an
increasing recognition of the brand and quality of service 
delivery. The company also established a ‘Greenfields’ 
operation in South Australia which has exceeded expectations. 
The pipeline of opportunities, as well as the size of 
opportunities, remains favourable across the regions in which 
the company operates.

Urban Lighting Group Pty Ltd, our street and commercial 
lighting subsidiary, made steady progress. The amount of
infrastructure activity and residential land developments 
remain high and we are finding strong demand within our 
Street Lighting division. Likewise, our commercial lighting 
brand is succeeding in winning quality projects, and we look 
forward to the forthcoming financial year with the introduction 
of a new range of exceptional product offerings.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
OPERATING RESULTS

OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW

In August 2018 the Company raised $3.45 million proceeds 
from the capital raise (gross of costs) that were deployed to 
fund the working capital requirements of the expanded 
business, following completion of the acquisition of the Lumex 
Electrical business and assets.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group remains in an expansion phase with revenue 
growth of 52% (as outlined above) and consequently is 
actively managing the working capital demands and 
challenges that growth brings. 

WORKING CAPITAL AND CASHFLOWS FROM 
OPERATIONS

The Company has been successful in a claim for breach of 
contract against the consultant that was engaged to advise on
historic Research and Development (R&D) expenditure claims, 
which the Company voluntarily withdrew on subsequent 
review and the Grants agreed to be repaid to the Australian 
Taxation Office on terms. The Company is advised that there 
are reasonable prospects of enforcing this Judgment together 
with any orders for costs and interest made by the Court and 
is actively pursuing that recovery process.

The results for the year ended 30 June 2019 include the 
one-off costs incurred to execute the legal process to a point 
of issuance of orders for recovery. Included in Other Income is 
an initial recovery accrual of $200,000, although the company
expects to collect in excess of of this amount once the costs 
and interest components are factored in and agreed.

LEGAL MATTERS

The company now employs 92 highly qualified staff across five 
states and is well placed to take advantage of growth
opportunities as they arise. The company has invested in 
expanding it presence in South Australia, New South wales and 
more recently Queensland.

EMPLOYEES

The Audio Visual (AV) Integration and Lighting divisions 
continue their expansion with numerous large projects having 
been won and completed and many more in the pipeline. The 
AV division will look to further expand its operational points of 
presence with the appointment of a dedicated resource in 
Queensland and ongoing expansion in Victoria and South 
Australia.

Following the acquisition of the Lumex Electrical business and 
assets the Company has actioned its acquisition strategy to 

OUTLOOK

The principal business activity of Enevis is design, distribution 
and installation of lighting and audio visual products.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES



There are no unissued ordinary shares of Enevis Limited under option at the date of this report.
The following unlisted options expired as at 30 June 2019.

Date options
granted

No option holder has any right under the options to participate in any other share issue of the company.

Number of unissued ordinary 
shares under option

30 June 2017 1,735,496

Exercise price
of shares

$0.35

Expiry date of
the options

30 June 2019

1 November 2017 7,843,332 $0.35 30 June 2019

The Group made a drawdown from Moller Volantor Pty Ltd, an 
entity related to Greg Jinks, under the pre existing secured 
and unsecured loan agreements (as detailed in note 14) to the 
amount of $200,000 on 26 July 2019. The loan was in part 
required, to assist in funding pursuance of the legal case 
against the R&D Consultant, as outlined.

Apart from the matters described above, the directors are not 
aware of any matters or circumstances which have occurred
subsequent to balance date, that may significantly affect the 
operations or the state of affair of the Consolidated entity in 
future financial periods.

SHARES UNDER OPTION

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE

Other than as noted above, no proceedings have been brought 
on behalf of the company or its controlled entities.

PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANY

find complementary businesses to add to its already proven 
organic growth story to become a major Australian provider of 
Energy Technology and Services.

The company intends to leverage its electrical and technology 
skill base to bring energy efficiency solutions to all its projects
and deliverables and seek out new technologies that add to its 
vision and to differentiate itself from its competitors. 
Accordingly, and as announced, the Company was excited to 
have signed an exclusive evergreen supply agreement with 
LumiGrow, the USA-based designer and manufacturer of smart 
grow light solutions. The relationship enables Enevis to 
leverage its existing skill base to enter the protected cropping 
markets and other emerging horticultural markets in Australia, 
New Zealand and parts of Asia.

The Group has also recently partnered with some prestigious 
European lighting brands to expand its offerings and
capabilities. 

The year ahead looks extremely promising, there are a 
number of projects in the pipeline, and the company is well 
placed to take advantage of opportunities as they arise.

Other than as addressed above, there were no significant 
changes in the state of affairs of the Company and its 
controlled entities that occurred during the financial year.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

The company’s operations are not subject to any significant 
environmental regulations under the Commonwealth or State
legislation. However, the Directors believe that the Company 
has adequate systems in place for the management of its
environmental requirements and is not aware of any breach 
of those environmental requirements as they apply to the 
economic entity.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION AND PERFORMANCE

No dividends have been paid, declared or recommended but 
not paid by the company in respect of the year ended 30 
June 2019 or the year ended 30 June 2018.

DIVIDENDS

No options were issued during the year ended 30 June 2019.
OPTIONS
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The number of Directors’ meetings held during the financial 
year and the number of meetings attended by each director 
(while they were a director) are as follows:

Director
 
Eligible to attend

Directors Meetings

Peter Jinks 12

Attended

12

DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS

Directors’ relevant interests in shares of Enevis Limited or 
options over shares in the company (or a related body 
corporate) are detailed below.

The constitution of the company provides that, to the extent 
permitted by the Corporations Act 2001 “every officer and 
employee of the company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries 
shall be indemnified out of the funds of the company (to the 
extent that the officer or employee is not otherwise 
indemnified) against all liabilities incurred as such an officer 
or employee, including all liabilities incurred as a result of 
appointment or nomination by the company or the subsidiary 
as a trustee or as an officer or employee of another 
corporation.”

The directors of the company who held office during the past 
year, Peter Jinks, Greg Jinks, Terence Grigg and Thomas Krulis
have the benefit of the above indemnity. The indemnity also 
applies to executive officers of the company who are 
concerned, or take part, in the management of the company.

The company has not paid any insurance premiums in respect 
of any past or present directors or auditors, other than as
required by law.

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE
OF OFFICERS AND AUDITORS

A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required 
under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to 
the audit for the financial year is provided with this report on 
page 64.

AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

The Board appreciates the support it continues to have from 
the company’s staff, and acknowledges, with thanks, the 
efforts they are all making to the growth of the company.

STAFF

In accordance with ASIC Corporations (Rounding in the 
Financial/Directors’ Reports) Instrument 2016/191, the 
amounts in the directors’ report and in the financial report 
have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

all non-audit services were subject to the corporate 
governance procedures adopted by Enevis Limited and 
have been reviewed and approved by the board of 
Directors to ensure they do not impact on the integrity 
and objectivity of the auditor; and

the non-audit services provided do not undermine the 
general principles relating to auditor independence as set 
out in �� � � �� �� �� � � � �� � �� �� �� � ��� � �� �� �� � � �� 
 � ��� � � � 
 
 �� 
 �� 	 as 
they did not involve reviewing or auditing the auditor’s 
own work, acting in a management or decision making 
capacity for Enevis Limited or any of its related entities, 
acting as an advocate for Enevis Limited or any of its 
related entities, or jointly sharing risks and rewards in 
relation to the operations or activities of Enevis Limited 
or any of its related entities.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES OR OPTIONS

Greg Jinks 12 12

Terence Grigg 12 12

Thomas Krulis 12 12

Directors’ relevant
interests in:

Ordinary shares
of Enevis Limited

Peter Jinks 6,019,167

Options over
shares in
Enevis Limited

Nil

Amounts paid and payable to
Pitcher Partners (Melbourne)
for non-audit services:

2019
$ 

Taxation services 60,570

2018
$

60,000

60,570 60,000

Greg Jinks 7,019,167 Nil

Terence Grigg 171,500 Nil

Thomas Krulis 2,076,666 Nil

Non-audit services are approved by resolution of the board of
directors. Non-audit services were provided by the auditors of 
entities in the consolidated group during the year, namely 
Pitcher Partners Melbourne, as detailed below. The directors 
are satisfied that the provision of the non-audit services 
during the year by the auditor is compatible with the general 
standard of independence for auditors imposed by the 
� � �� � �� � �� 
 � �� � � �� ���  for the following reasons:

NON-AUDIT SERVICES



This report outlines the remuneration arrangements in place 
for key management personnel of Enevis Limited.

REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)

Remuneration levels are set by the company in accordance 
with industry standards to attract and retain suitable qualified 
and experienced Directors and senior executives. The 
company has not engaged a remuneration consultant.

The company distinguishes the structure of non-executive 
Director’s remuneration from that of executive Directors and 
senior executives. The company’s Constitution provides that 
the remuneration of non-executive Directors will be not more 
than the aggregated sum fixed by a general meeting of 
shareholders.

The Company has an executive service agreement with Mr 
Peter Jinks (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) and Mr Greg
Jinks (Executive Director) whom are on three months’ notice 
periods. The Company has employment agreements with each 

REMUNERATION PHILOSOPHY

DIRECTORS’ AND OTHER OFFICERS’ EMOLUMENTS

2019

of its senior executives. There are no written agreements with 
the other non executive directors.

The remuneration for executive Directors is currently not linked 
to the Company’s financial performance or share price. None 
of the remuneration of the Directors listed below was 
considered at risk.

There are no retirement schemes in place for directors other 
than statutory contributions to superannuation.

DETAILS OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Peter Jinks 227,173

Greg Jinks 183,146

Terence Grigg 30,000

Thomas Krulis 30,000

Short-term

Salary and fees
$

248,400

200,545

30,000

30,000

Total

$

21,227

17,399

-

-

Post-employment

Superannuation
$

DIRECTORS

Peter Jinks Managing Director and Chairman

Greg Jinks Executive Director 

Terence Grigg Non-Executive Director

Thomas Krulis Non-Executive Director

Total 470,319 508,94538,626

2018

Peter Jinks 224,152

Greg Jinks 245,400

Terence Grigg 30,000

Thomas Krulis (appointed on 20-09-2017) 25,000

245,060

245,400

30,000

25,000

20,908

-

-

-

Total 524,552 545,46020,908
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The following table summarises company performance and key performance indicators:
CONSEQUENCES OF COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE ON SHAREHOLDER WEALTH

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL’S EQUITY HOLDINGS

(A) NUMBER OF OPTIONS HELD BY KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Sales revenue

% increase in revenue

Profit/(loss) before tax

% increase in profit/(loss) before tax

Change in share price (%)

Dividend paid to shareholders

Return of capital ($)

Peter Jinks

Greg Jinks

Terence Grigg

Thomas Krulis

$27,150,403

34%

($3,008,917)

(67%)

(33%)

–

–

759,917

759,917

10,750 

666,666

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(759,917)

(759,917)

(10,750)

(666,666)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

$20,239,474

31%

($1,806,402)

(77%)

(25%)

–

–

$15,415,780

4%

($1,022,704)

71%

(18%)

–

–

$14,807,749

-4%

($3,573,694)

2,337%

23%

–

–

Balance
1 July 2018

Balance
30 June 2019

Balance
held directly

Balance
held indirectly

Granted as
remuneration

Options
Exercised

Options
Lapsed

2016
Restated *

20152019 2018 2017
Restated *

2,197,250 - - -- - (2,197,250)

$545,460 $650,348 $621,676 $572,700Total remuneration of KMP

-

$41,186,567

52%

$19,167

101%

0%

–

–

$508,945

- - - -Total performance based remuneration

Directors

2019

(B) NUMBER OF SHARES HELD BY KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Peter Jinks

Greg Jinks

Terence Grigg

Thomas Krulis

5,019,167

5,019,167

71,500

1,576,666

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,000,000

2,000,000

100,000

500,000

6,019,167

7,019,167

171,500

2,076,666

12,500

-

-

-

6,006,667

7,019,167

171,500

2,076,666

Balance
1 July 2018

Balance
30 June 2019 

Balance
held directly

Balance
held indirectly

Received as 
remuneration

Other
changes

Share
Purchases

(Approved at
2018 EGM)

11,686,500 15,286,500 12,500 15,274,000- - 3,600,000

Directors

2019



TRANSACTIONS WITH KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The following is a summary of transactions with directors 

and other related parties entered into throughout the 

financial year:

Key management personnel did not receive any share 

based compensation during the year.

The company varied the secured and unsecured loan 

agreements with Moller Volantor (an entity related to 

Greg Jinks) to alter the repayment dates to 31 

October 2020 (or earlier at the company’s discretion).

Following Shareholder Approval at the Extraordinary 

General Meeting held on 25 July 2018, $200,000 of 

the $500,000 unsecured loan outstanding (with Moller 

Volantor) was converted to 1,000,000 ordinary shares 

at $0.20 cents per share being on the same terms as 

other sophisticated and wholesale investors who 

participated in the equity raise. Post 30 June 2019, 

the Company made a further drawdown of $100,000 

under this loan agreement.

The Company repaid $500,000 of the secured loan 

(with Moller Volantor) on 16 August 2018. The

 Company subsequently did a drawdown on the 

secured loan facility on 4 February 2019 to the 

amount of $500,000 and repaid $100,000, leaving a 

balance owing at 30 June 2019 of $900,000. Post 30 

June 2019, the Company made a further drawdown of 

$100,000 under this loan agreement.

The Company paid interest cost of $102,808 to Moller 

Volanter during the financial year ended on 30 June 

2019 (2018:$150,000).

Lawson Lodge Country Estate (Macedon), a 

conference centre owed by Greg Jinks invoiced the 

company for $24,199. The transaction was on an 

arms length basis on normal commercial terms and 

conditions.

Peter Jinks
Chairman and Managing Director

30 August 2019

The Board of Directors of Enevis Limited is responsible 

for corporate governance. The Board has chosen to 

prepare the Corporate Governance Statement (CGS) in 

accordance with the third edition of the ASX Corporate 

Governance Council’s Principles and Recommendations 

under which the CGS may be made available on the 

Company’s website.

 

Accordingly, a copy of the Company’s CGS is available on 

the Enevis website at 

www.Enevis.com.au/corporate-governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The company received 100% of ‘for’ votes in relation to 

its remuneration report for the year ended 30 June 2018. 

The resolution to adopt the Remuneration Report of the 

Company and its controlled entities for the year ended 

30 June 2018 was carried as an ordinary resolution. The 

company did not receive any specific feedback at the 

AGM regarding its remuneration practices.

Signed on 30 August 2019 in accordance with a 

resolution of the Directors made pursuant to section 

298(2) of the � � �� � �� � �� 
 � �� � � �� ��� �

VOTING AND COMMENTS MADE AT THE COMPANY’S 
2018 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM)

Enevis Limited 2019 Full Year Report34



Enevis Limited 2019 Full Year Report35

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Revenue and other income

Sales revenue

Other income

5(a)

5(b)

41,186,567

209,503

27,150,403

357

Notes 2019
$

2018
$

41,396,070 27,150,760

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Total Revenue and other income

(41,376,903) (30,008,600)Total Expenses

19,167 (2,857,840)Profit / (loss) after income tax from continuing operations

Cost of sales

Occupancy expenses

Administration expenses

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment expense

Finance charges

5(c)

5(c)

5(c)

(31,014,251)

(619,581)

(8,733,683)

(252,419)

(174,143)

(582,826)

(20,393,800)

(548,672)

(6,726,059)

(148,925)

(1,549,577)

(641,567)

Earnings / (Loss) per share from continuing operations (cents per share)

Basic

Diluted

19

19

0.03

0.03

(6.82)

(6.82)

EXPENSES

Profit / (loss) before income tax

Income tax expense 7

19,167

-

(2,857,840)

-

19,167 (3,008,917)Profit / (loss) for the year

19,167 (3,008,917)Profit / (loss) attributable to members of the Parent Entity

Earnings / (Loss) per share from discontinued operations (cents per share)

Basic

Diluted

19

19

-

-

(0.36)

(0.36)

Loss after income tax from discontinued operations 24 - (151,077)

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Profit/(loss) for the year

-

19,167

-

(3,008,917)

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes



AS AT 30 JUNE 2019

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

679,878

9,292,849

5,336,670

230,387

23(a)

8

9

10

11

12

10

2,907

5,116,069

2,618,280

93,002

Notes 2019
$

2018
$

15,539,784 7,830,258

522,448

1,267,174

159,999

466,864

814,581

119,025

17,489,405 9,230,728

1,949,621 1,400,470

8,219,621

3,361,560

-

721,784

13

14(a)

15

16(a)

14(b)

15

16(b)

5,396,530

3,376,118

2,524,819

552,243

12,302,965 11,849,710

19,198,931

(17,443,354)

17

18

14,419,075

(17,462,521)

1,755,577 (3,043,446)

1,200,000

2,112,613

118,250

349,251

-

75,213

15,733,828 12,274,174

1,755,577 (3,043,446)

3,430,863 424,464

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 

Trade and other receivables 

Inventories

Other assets

Total Current Assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Plant and equipment 

Intangible Assets

Other assets

Total Non-Current Assets

Total Assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 

Borrowings

R&D tax incentive payable 

Provisions – Employee benefits 

Total Current Liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Borrowings

R&D tax incentive payable 

Provisions – Employee benefits 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities

Net assets  (Net asset 

EQUITY

Contributed equity 

Accumulated losses

Total Equity

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and employees

Interest received

Finance costs

41,464,294

(43,733,057)

4,114

(507,328)

30,215,848

(30,228,776)

4

(495,566)

Notes 2019
$

2018
$

(2,771,977)23(d)

23(a)

(508,490)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net cash used in operating activities

Payment for plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment

Payment for intangibles 

Proceeds from sale of business

(196,839)

16,642

(387,720)

-

(75,319)

768

(5,832)

787,642

(567,917) 707,259

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net cash (used in) / provided by investing activities

Proceeds from issue of shares

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayments of borrowings

Repayments of convertible notes

3,062,347

1,650,367

(695,849)

-

141,323

-

(1,162,537)

(1,335,894)

4,016,865 (2,357,108)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 2,907 2,161,246

679,878 2,907Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

676,971 (2,158,339)Net increase/ (decrease) in cash held

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

As at 1 July 2017

Issue of shares

Cost of issue of shares

Loss for the year

(14,453,604)

-

-

(3,008,917)

14,277,752

172,000

(30,677)

-

(175,852)

172,000

(30,677)

(3,008,917)

Contributed
Equity

$

Accumulated
losses

$

Total
$

(17,462,521)14,419,075 (3,043,446)

As at 1 July 2018

Issue of shares to vendor of Lumex

Issue of shares for cash consideration

Issue of shares on debt to equity conversion

Cost of issue of shares

Issue of shares on conversion of Convertible Notes

Profit for the year

(17,462,521)

-

-

-

-

-

19,167

14,419,075

1,117,509

3,250,000

200,000

(187,653)

400,000

-

(3,043,446)

1,117,509

3,250,000

200,000

(187,653)

400,000

19,167

Contributed
Equity

$

Accumulated
losses

$

Total
$

(17,443,354)19,198,931 1,755,577As at 30 June 2019

As at 30 June 2018

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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power over the entity.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the 
same reporting period as the parent entity, using consistent
accounting policies. Adjustments are made to bring into line 
any dissimilar accounting policies, which may exist.

All inter-company balances and transactions, including any 
unrealised profits or losses have been eliminated on
consolidation. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on 
which control is established and are de-recognised from the
date that control ceases. 

Equity interests in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or 
indirectly, to the group are presented as non-controlling 
interests. Non-controlling interests in the results of subsidiar-
ies are shown separately in the consolidated Statement of 
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income and consoli-
dated Statement of Financial Position respectively.

This financial report is a general purpose financial report that
has been prepared in accordance with the � � �� � �� � �� 
 � �� � �
����  and Australian Accounting Standards, Interpretations and
other applicable authoritative pronouncements of the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB).

The financial report covers Enevis Limited and controlled 
entities as a consolidated entity. Enevis Limited is a company
limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. The 
address of Enevis Limited’s registered office and principal
place of business is 53 Stanley Street, West Melbourne. Enevis 
Limited is a for-profit entity for the purpose of preparing
the financial report.

The financial report of Enevis Limited for the year ended 30 
June 2019 was authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the directors on 30 August 2019.

The consolidated financial statements of Enevis Limited also 
comply with the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB).

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies 
adopted by the consolidated entity in the preparation and
presentation of the financial report. The accounting policies 
have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(A) BASIS OF PREPARATION

(B) PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

(C) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Compliance with IFRS

A business combination is a transaction or other event in
which an acquirer obtains control of one or more businesses
and results in the consolidation of the assets and liabilities
acquired. Business combinations are accounted for by
applying the acquisition method.

The consideration transferred is the sum of the acquisition 
date fair values of the assets transferred, equity instruments
issued or liabilities incurred by the acquirer to former owners 
of the acquiree. Deferred consideration payable is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value. Contingent consideration to 
be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at the acquisition
date fair value. At each reporting date subsequent to the 
acquisition, contingent consideration payable is measured at 
its fair value with any changes in the fair value recognised in 
profit or loss unless the contingent consideration is classified 
as equity, in which case the contingent consideration is carried 
at its acquisition-date fair value.

Goodwill is recognised initially at the excess of: (a) the 
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the fair value of the
non-controlling interest, and the acquisition date fair value of 
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest (in case of step
acquisition); over (b) the net fair value of the identifiable 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. 

If the net fair value of the acquirer’ s interest in the identifiable 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed is greater than the 
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the fair value of the 
non-controlling interest, and the acquisition date fair value of 
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest, the difference is 
immediately recognised as a gain in profit or loss.

Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

The financial report has been prepared under the historical 
cost convention, as modified by revaluations to fair value for
certain classes of assets as described in the accounting 
policies.

The consolidated financial statements are those of the 
consolidated entity, comprising the financial statements of the
parent entity and of all entities which the parent entity 
controls. The group controls an entity when it is exposed, or 
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the 
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its 

Historical cost convention

The preparation of the financial report requires the use of 
certain estimates and judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies. Those estimates and judgements 
significant to the financial report are disclosed in Note 2.

Significant accounting estimates
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Goodwill
Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from
other assets acquired in a business combination that are not
individually identifiable or separately recognised. Refer to Note
1(c) for a description of how goodwill arising from a business
combination is initially measured.

Goodwill is not amortised but is tested annually for 
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. Goodwill is 
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Except for indefinite useful life intangible assets, which are not 
amortised but are tested annually for impairment, intangible
assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives 
commencing from the time the asset is available for use. The
amortisation method applied to an intangible asset is 
consistent with the estimated consumption of economic 
benefits of the asset.

(D) INTANGIBLES

(E) GOING CONCERN

Intangible assets

Based on the above the directors believe that the Group will 
continue as a going concern over the next 12 months and
consequently will realise assets and settle liabilities and 
commitments in the ordinary course of business and at the
amounts stated in the financial report.

If the going concern basis of accounting is found to no longer 
be appropriate, the recoverable amounts of the assets
shown in the statement of financial position are likely to be 
significantly less than the amounts disclosed and the extent of
the liabilities may differ significantly from those reflected in the 
statement of financial position.

The financial report has been prepared on a going concern
basis which contemplates the continuity of normal business
activities and realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities
in the ordinary course of business.

The group generated a profit of $19,167 during the year ended 
30 June 2019 (year ended 30 June 2018 loss of $3,008,917), 
and as at that date, the group’s net asset position was 
$1,755,577 (30 June 2018: net asset deficiency $3,043,446). 
The working capital position as at 30 June 2019 results in an 
excess of current assets over current liabilities of $3,236,819 
(30 June 2018: current liabilities over current assets 
$4,019,452).

The group produced negative cash flows from operating 
activities for the year ended 30 June 2019 of $2,771,977 
following investment in working capital (30 June 2018: 
$508,490). The ability of the Group to continue as a going 
concern is reliant on generating profits, improving cash flows 
from operating activities, managing debt levels, and the 
management of other cash flows within the Group’s funding 
facilities.

Notwithstanding the above, the directors believe the going 
concern basis is appropriate due to the following factors:

The Group has prepared forward budget and cash flow 
projections which are based on increasing revenues from 
the expanding technologies divisions of lighting and 
audio-visual products and solutions which support 
improving cashflows from operating activities.

The technology division remains in a growth phase which 
has meant investment in people, facilities and equipment 
to allow for this growth. The directors expect that this 
investment which has already delivered significant growth 
will result in, not only further growth, but profitability and 
positive operating cash flows in the future.

The Group has executed agreements with the Australian 
Taxation Office for an orderly repayment of the R&D tax 
payable booked which enables the Group to manage 
repayment of this debt. Broadly, this comprises repayment 
by instalments over a three (3) year timeframe ending May 
2022. As at 30 June 2019, the company has met its
repayment obligations for the ensuing 12 month period 
and accordingly the debt is classified as non-current.

The Group has secured agreement from Moller Volantor 
Pty Ltd to defer the repayment date on the secured loan 
and unsecured loans until 31 October 2020, although the 
Group retains the right (but not the obligation) to repay 
these loans earlier if cashflows allow. These deferrals 
further assist the Group in realigning its debt repayment 
obligations to coincide with expected improved future 
cashflows. Attention is also drawn to the note 27 
Subsequent Events.

The Group has the ongoing support of its Debtor 
Financiers and at the date of this report is in the process 
of negotiating revised credit limits and terms to support 
future revenue growth.

The directors also believe the company has quality assets 
that could be realised if required to raise further capital to 
fund working capital requirements or repay debt.
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Loans to related parties are debt instruments, and are 
classified (and measured) at amortised cost on the basis that:

a. they are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by the group holding the financial asset to collect
contractual cash flows; and

b. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Loans to related parties(F) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when 
the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date 
that the entity commits itself to either the purchase or sale of
the asset (i.e. trade date accounting is adopted).

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value 
adjusted for transaction costs, except where the instrument is
classified as fair value through profit or loss, in which case 
transaction costs are immediately recognised as expenses in
profit or loss.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets recognised by the group are subsequently 
measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair 
value, subject to their classification and whether the group 
irrevocably designates the financial asset on initial recognition 
at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVtOCI) in 
accordance with the relevant criteria in AASB 9.

Financial assets not irrevocably designated on initial 
recognition at FVtOCI are classified as subsequently measured 
at amortised cost, FVtOCI or fair value through profit or loss 
(FVtPL) on the basis of both:

a. the group’s business model for managing the financial
assets; and

b. the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
asset.

Classification of financial assets

Financial liabilities classified as held-for-trading, contingent 
consideration payable by the group for the acquisition of a
business, and financial liabilities designated at FVtPL, are 
subsequently measured at fair value.

All other financial liabilities recognised by the group are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Classification of financial liabilities

Trade and other receivables arise from the group’s 
transactions with its customers and are normally settled 
within 30 days.

Consistent with both the group’s business model for managing 
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the assets, trade and other receivables are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Trade and other receivables

The following financial assets are tested for impairment by 
applying the ‘expected credit loss’ impairment model:

a. debt instruments measured at amortised cost;

b. debt instruments classified at fair value through other
comprehensive income; and

c. receivables from contracts with customers and contract
assets.

The group applies the simplified approach under AASB 9 to 
measuring the allowance for credit losses for both receivables
from contracts with customers and contract assets. Under the 
AASB 9 simplified approach, the group determines the
allowance for credit losses for receivables from contracts with 
customers and contract assets on the basis of the lifetime
expected credit losses of the financial asset. Lifetime expected 
credit losses represent the expected credit losses that are
expected to result from default events over the expected life of 
the financial asset.

For all other financial assets subject to impairment testing, 
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since 
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the allowance for 
credit losses is recognised on the basis of the lifetime 
expected credit losses. When there has not been an increase 
in credit risk since initial recognition, the allowance for credit 
losses is recognised on the basis of 12-month expected credit 
losses. ’12-month expected credit losses’ is the portion of 
lifetime expected credit losses that represent the expected 
credit losses that result from default events on a financial 
instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the 
reporting date.

The group consider a range of information when assessing 
whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. This includes such factors as the identification of 
significant changes in external market indicators of credit risk,
significant adverse changes in the financial performance or 
financial position of the counterparty, significant changes in 
the value of collateral, and past due information.

Impairment of financial assets
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The group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
not increased significantly since initial recognition when the
financial asset is determined to have a low credit risk at the 
reporting date. The group considers a financial asset to have a
low credit risk when the counterparty is assessed by the group 
to have a strong financial position and no history of past due
amounts from previous transactions with the group.

The group assumes that the credit risk on a financial 
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition 
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

The group determines expected credit losses based on 
individual debtor level expectations relative to credit terms,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtor as well as 
relevant current and future expected economic conditions.
When material, the time value of money is incorporated into 
the measurement of expected credit losses. There has been
no change in the estimation techniques or significant 
assumptions made during the reporting period.

The group has identified contractual payments more than 90 
days past due as default events for the purpose of measuring
expected credit losses. These default events have been 
selected based on the group’s historical experience. Because
contract assets are directly related to unbilled work in 
progress, contract assets have a similar credit risk profile to
receivables from contracts with customers. Accordingly, the 
group applies the same approach to measuring expected
credit losses of receivables from contracts with customers as 
it does to measuring impairment losses on contract assets.

The measurement of expected credit losses reflects the 
group’s ‘expected rate of loss’, which is a product of the
probability of default and the loss given default, and its 
‘exposure at default’, which is typically the carrying amount of 
the relevant asset. Expected credit losses are measured as the 
difference between all contractual cash flows due and all
contractual cash flows expected based on the group’s 
exposure at default, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

Financial assets are regarded as ‘credit-impaired’ when one or 
more events have occurred that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset. 
Indicators that a financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ include
observable data about the following:

a. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
b. breach of contract;
c. the lender, for economic or contractual reasons relating to

the borrower’s financial difficulty, has granted concessions
to the borrower that the lender would not otherwise
consider; or

d. it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off 
(i.e. reduced directly) when the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and the group has no realistic expectation of 
recovery of the financial asset. Financial assets written off
remain subject to enforcement action by the group. 
Recoveries, if any, are recognised in profit or loss.
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Plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of 
either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated
useful lives of the improvements. Depreciation is calculated on 
a straight-line basis or diminishing value over the estimated
useful life of the asset as follows:

Plant and equipment:      over 3 to 10 years

The assets residual values, useful lives and depreciation 
methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
financial year end.

(G) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Borrowing costs can include interest expense calculated using
the effective interest method, finance charges in respect of
finance leases, and exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs.

Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred, except for 
borrowing costs incurred as part of the cost of the 
construction of a qualifying asset which are capitalised until 
the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

(H) BORROWING COSTS

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.
Costs are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials – average purchase cost. The cost of purchase 
comprises the purchase price, import duties and other
taxes, transport, handling and other costs directly attributable 
to the acquisition of raw materials.

Finished goods and work-in-progress – average cost of direct 
materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing
overheads based on normal operating capacity but excluding 
borrowing costs.

(I) INVENTORIES



Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand
and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

(J) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(K) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i) Short-term employee benefit obligations
Liabilities arising in respect of wages and salaries, annual
leave and any other employee benefits (other than termination
benefits) expected to be settled wholly before twelve months
after the end of the annual reporting period are measured at
the (undiscounted) amounts based on remuneration rates
which are expected to be paid when the liability is settled. The
expected cost of short-term employee benefits in the form of
compensated absences such as annual leave and
accumulated sick leave is recognised in the provision for
employee benefits. All other short-term employee benefit
obligations are presented as payables in the statement of
financial position.

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations
The provision for other long-term employee benefits, including
obligations for long service leave and annual leave, which
are not expected to be settled wholly before twelve months
after the end of the reporting period, are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflow to be made
in respect of the services provided by employees up to the
reporting date. Expected future payments incorporate antici-
pated future wage and salary levels, durations of service and
employee turnover, and are discounted at rates determined by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period
on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates that
approximate the terms of the obligations. Any
remeasurements for changes in assumptions of obligations for
other long-term employee benefits are recognised in profit
or loss in the periods in which the change occurs.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations are presented 
as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 
twelve months after the reporting date, regardless of when the
actual settlement is expected to occur. All other long-term 
employee benefit obligations are presented as non-current
liabilities in the statement of financial position.

(iii) Termination benefits
The group recognises an obligation and expense for
termination benefits at the earlier of: (a) the date when the
group can no longer withdraw the offer for termination
benefits; and (b) when the group recognises costs for
restructuring and the costs include termination benefits. In

(L) PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the consolidated entity has a
legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events,
for which it is probable that an out flow of economic benefits
will result and that outflow can be reliably measured.

(M) LEASES

Leases are classified at their inception as either operating or
finance leases based on the economic substance of the
agreement so as to reflect the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership.

Finance leases
Leases of fixed assets, where substantially all of the risks and 
benefits incidental to ownership of the asset, but not the
legal ownership, are transferred to the consolidated entity are 
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised,
recording an asset and liability equal to the fair value or, if 
lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments,
including any guaranteed residual values. The interest expense 
is calculated using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
this is practicable to determine; if not, the consolidated entity’s 
incremental borrowing rate is used. Interest expense on
finance leases is included in finance costs in the statement of 
profit or loss. Leased assets are depreciated on a straight
line basis over their estimated useful lives where it is likely the 
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either case, the obligation and expense for termination 
benefits is measured on the basis of the best estimate of the 
number of employees expected to be affected. Termination 
benefits that are expected to be settled wholly before twelve 
months after the annual reporting period in which the benefits 
are recognised are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts 
expected to be paid. All other termination benefits are 
accounted for on the same basis as other long-term employee 
benefits

(iv) Retirement benefit obligations
Defined contribution superannuation plan
The consolidated entity makes superannuation contributions
(currently 9.50% of the employee’s average ordinary salary)
to the employee’s defined contribution superannuation plan of
choice in respect of employee services rendered during the
year. These superannuation contributions are recognised as an
expense in the same period when the related employee
services are received. The group’s obligation with respect to
employee’s defined contributions entitlements is limited to its
obligation for any unpaid superannuation guarantee
contributions at the end of the reporting period. All obligations
for unpaid superannuation guarantee contributions are
measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid
when the obligation is settled and are presented as current
liabilities in the statement of financial position.



consolidated entity will obtain ownership of the asset, or
over the term of the lease. Lease payments are allocated 
between the reduction of the lease liability and the lease 
interest expense for the period in accordance with the 
effective interest method.

Operating leases
Lease payments for operating leases are recognised as an 
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Lease incentives received under operating leases are 
recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-line basis 
over the life of the lease term.

not affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary 
differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those 
temporary differences and losses. Current and deferred tax
balances attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity 
are also recognised directly in equity.

Tax consolidation
Enevis Limited (parent entity) and its wholly owned 
subsidiaries have implemented the tax consolidation 
legislation and have formed a tax-consolidated group from 30 
November 2009. The parent entity and subsidiaries in the 
tax-consolidated group have entered into a tax funding 
agreement such that each entity in the tax-consolidated group 
recognises the assets, liabilities, expenses and revenues in 
relation to its own transactions, events and balances only. 
This means that:

The tax-consolidated group also has a tax sharing agreement 
in place to limit the liability of subsidiaries in the 
tax-consolidated group arising under the joint and several 
liability requirements of the tax consolidation system, in the 
event of default by the parent entity to meet its payment 
obligations.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
customer receives the goods, ownership of the goods have
passed and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably. Ownership is
considered to have passed to the buyer at the time of delivery
of the goods to the customer.

Revenue from the provision of services is recognised as 
performance obligations are satisfied over time, via transfer of
services to customers, which is measured based on stage of 
completion.

Certain customers may be invoiced in advance of provision of 
services and this amount is recognised as a liability until the
group provides, and the customer consumes, the benefits of 
the services.

Interest revenue is recognised when it becomes receivable on 
a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates
applicable to the financial assets.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of Goods and Services 
Tax (GST).

Current income tax expense or revenue is the tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax balances

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary 
differences at the applicable tax rates when the assets are
expected to be recovered or liabilities are settled. No deferred 
tax asset or liability is recognised in relation to temporary
differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a 
business combination, that at the time of the transaction did 
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(N) REVENUE

(O) INCOME TAX

the parent entity recognises all current and deferred tax 
amounts relating to its own transactions, events and
balances only;

the subsidiaries recognise current or deferred tax amounts 
arising in respect of their own transactions, events and
balances;

current tax liabilities and deferred tax assets arising in 
respect of tax losses, are transferred from the subsidiary 
to the head entity as inter-company payables or 
receivables.

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the
amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is
not recoverable from the Tax Office. In these circumstances the
GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the
asset or as part of an item of the expense. Receivables and
payables in the statement of financial position are shown
inclusive of GST.

Cash flows are presented in the statement of cash flows on a 
gross basis, except for the GST component of investing and
financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash 
flows.

(P) GOODS AND SERVICES TAX (GST)



Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held 
for sale if it is highly probable their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than 
through continuing use. Except in some limited circumstances,
such as in the case of deferred tax balances and items 
measured at fair value on a recurring basis, non-current 
assets and assets and liabilities comprising disposal groups 
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their 
carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.

Goodwill, intangible assets not yet ready for use and intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are not subject to
amortisation and are therefore tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired.

For impairment assessment purposes, assets are generally 
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely
independent cash flows (‘cash generating units’). Accordingly, 
most assets are tested for impairment at the cash generating 
unit level. Because it does not generate cash flows 
independently of other assets or groups of assets, goodwill
is allocated to the cash generating unit or units that are 
expected to benefit from the synergies arising from the 
business combination that gave rise to the goodwill.

Assets other than goodwill, intangible assets not yet ready for 
use and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
assessed for impairment whenever events or circumstances 
arise that indicate the asset may be impaired.

An impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of 
an asset or cash generating unit exceeds the asset’s or
cash generating unit’s recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount of an asset or cash generating unit is defined as the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Refer 
to Note 2 for a description of how management determines
value in use.

Impairment losses in respect of individual assets are 
recognised immediately in profit or loss unless the asset is 
carried at a revalued amount such as property, plant and 
equipment, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a 
revaluation decrease. Impairment losses in respect of cash 
generating units are allocated first against the carrying 
amount of any goodwill attributed to the cash generating unit 
with any remaining impairment loss allocated on a pro rata 
basis to the other assets comprising the relevant cash 
generating unit.

(Q) IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

(R) NON-CURRENT ASSETS AND DISPOSAL GROUPS HELD FOR
SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Where necessary, comparative information has been
reclassified and repositioned for consistency with current year
disclosures.

An impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of 
a non-current asset or disposal group held for sale exceeds
its fair value less costs to sell and is recognised immediately in 
profit or loss. Any impairment loss on a disposal group is
allocated first to any goodwill attributable to the disposal 
group, and then to the remaining assets and liabilities on a pro
rata basis, except for inventories, deferred tax assets and 
assets otherwise measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
Gains are recognised in respect of any subsequent increases 
in fair value less costs to sell of non-current assets or
disposal groups held for sale, but only to the extent of any 
cumulative impairment losses previously recognised.

A discontinued operation is a component of the consolidated 
entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held for
sale and that represents a separate major line of business or 
geographical area of operations, is part of a single 
co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area 
of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a
view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are 
disclosed separately in the consolidated financial statements.

(S) COMPARATIVES

The parent entity and the consolidated entity have applied the
relief available under ASIC Corporations (Rounding in
Financial/Directors’ Reports) Instrument 2016/191 and
accordingly, the amounts in the consolidated financial
statements and in the directors’ report have been rounded to
the nearest dollar.

(T) ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

The AASB has issued a number of new and amended 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have mandatory
application dates for future reporting periods, some of which 
are relevant to the Group. The Group has decided not to early
adopt any of these new and amended pronouncements. The 
Group’s assessment of the new and amended
pronouncements that are relevant to the Group but applicable 
in future reporting periods is set out below.

AASB 16 Leases
AASB 16: Leases (applicable for annual reporting periods 
commencing on or after 1 January 2019). AASB 16 will replace
AASB 117: Leases and introduces a single lessee accounting 
model that will require a lessee to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for all leases with a term of more 
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Right-of-use assets are initially measured at their cost and 

(U) ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 
AT 30 JUNE 2019
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cost and lease liabilities are initially measured on a present 
value basis.

Subsequent to initial recognition:

AASB 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting 
requirements in AASB 117. Accordingly, under AASB 16 a
lessor would continue to classify its leases as operating leases 
or finance leases subject to whether the lease transfers to
the lessee substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental 
to ownership of the underlying asset, and would account for
each type of lease in a manner consistent with the current 
approach under AASB 117.

Under AASB 16 operating lease commitments would be 
recognised as a liability of $1,305,586 as at 1 July 2019.

The Group adopted AASB 15 with no material impact resulting 
to revenue recognised. The accounting policy in relation to
revenue after the adoption of AASB 15 is included in Note 1 (n).

The Group adopted AASB 9 Financial Instruments, from 1 July 
2018. AASB 9 replaces AASB 139: Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. The key changes to the 
requirements in AASB 139 include:

(V) SUMMARY OF THE SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 
CHANGES
The Group adopted AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers from 1 July 2018. AASB 15 provides (other than in
relation to some specific exceptions, such as lease contracts 
and insurance contracts) a single source of accounting
requirements for all contracts with customers, thereby 
replacing all current accounting pronouncements on revenue. 
The core principle of AASB 15 is that an entity recognises 
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services 
to a customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to 
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. Accordingly, in contrast to the approach 
under AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 15 does not prescribe
different patterns of revenue recognition depending on 
whether the entity provides a good or service to the customer.

The Group adopted AASB 9 with no resulting change to the 
classification and measurement of the groups payables and
borrowings. In relation to impairment of financial assets, the 
changes to the expected loss approach did not have a
material impact to the groups financial position.

Enevis Limited 2019 Full Year Report46

right-of-use assets are accounted for on a similar basis to 
non-financial assets, whereby the right-of-use asset is
accounted for in accordance with a cost model unless the 
underlying asset is accounted for on a revaluation basis, in
which case if the underlying asset is:

investment property, the lessee applies the fair value 
model in AASB 140: Investment Property to the ight-of-use
asset; or

property, plant or equipment, the lessee can elect to apply 
the revaluation model in AASB 116: Property, Plant
and Equipment to all of the right-of-use assets that relate 
to that class of property, plant and equipment; and

lease liabilities are accounted for on a similar basis as 
other financial liabilities, whereby interest expense is
recognised in respect of the liability and the carrying 
amount of the liability is reduced to reflect lease payments
made.

simplifying the general classifications of financial assets 
into those carried at amortised cost and those carried at 
fair value;

permitting entities to irrevocably elect on initial 
recognition to present gains and losses on an equity 
instrument that is not held for trading in other 
comprehensive income (OCI);

simplifying the requirements for embedded derivatives, 
including removing the requirements to separate and fair
value embedded derivatives for financial assets carried at 
amortised cost;

requiring an entity that chooses to measure a financial 
liability at fair value to present the portion of the change in 
it fair value due to changes in the entity’s own credit risk 
in OCI, except when it would create an ‘accounting
mismatch’;

introducing a new model for hedge accounting that 
permits greater flexibility in the ability to hedge risk, 
particularly with respect to non-financial items; and

requiring impairment of financial assets carried at 
amortised cost to be based on an expected loss approach.

In applying the Group’s accounting policies management 
continually evaluates judgements, estimates and assumptions 
based on experience and other factors, including expectations 
of future events that may have an impact on the Group. All 
judgements, estimates and assumptions made are believed to 
be reasonable based on the most current set of circumstances 
available to management. Actual results may differ from the 
judgements, estimates and assumptions. Significant 
judgements, estimates and assumptions made by 
management in the preparation of these financial statements 
are outlined below:

NOTE 2: CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 
JUDGEMENTS
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The following is a summary of transactions with directors and 
other related parties entered into throughout the financial 
year:

NOTE 3: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Estimation of useful lives of assets
The estimation of the useful lives of assets has been based on 
historical experience as well as manufacturers’ warranties (for
plant and equipment), lease terms (for leased equipment) and 
turnover policies (for motor vehicles). In addition, the condition 
of the assets is assessed at least once per year and 
considered against the remaining useful life. Adjustments to 
useful life aremade when considered necessary. Depreciation 
charges are included in note 5.

Impairment of Goodwill
The recoverable amount of Goodwill is based on value in use 
calculations.  These calculations are based on projected cash
flows approved by management covering a period of 5 years. 
Management’s determination of cash flow projections and 
gross margins are based on past performance and its 
expectations for the future. The present value of future cash 
flows has been calculated using an average growth rate of 
2.5% for cash flows in year two to five which is based on the 
historical average, a terminal value growth rate of 2.5% and a 
pre-tax discount rate of 12% to determine value-in-use.

Sensitivity analysis concluded that there would be no impact 
on the carrying value of the goodwill.

The company varied the secured and unsecured loan 
agreements with Moller Volantor (an entity related to Greg 
Jinks) to alter the repayment dates to 31 October 2020 (or 
earlier at the company’s discretion).

Following Shareholder Approval at the Extraordinary 
General Meeting held on 25 July 2018, $200,000 of the 
$500,000 unsecured loan outstanding (with Moller 
Volantor) was converted to 1,000,000 ordinary shares at 
$0.20 cents per share being on the same terms as other 
sophisticated and wholesale investors who participated in 
the equity raise. Post 30 June 2019, the Company mad a 
further drawdown of $100,000 under this loan agreement.

The Company repaid $500,000 of the secured loan (with 
Moller Volantor) on 16 August 2018. The Company 
subsequently did a drawdown on the secured loan facility 
on 4 February 2019 to the amount of $500,000 and repaid 
$100,000, leaving a balance owing at 30 June 2019 of 
$900,000. Post 30 June 2019, the Company made a 
further drawdown of $100,000 under this loan agreement.

The Company paid interest cost of $102,808 to Moller 
Volanter during the financial year ended on 30 June 2019 
(2018: $150,000).

Greg Jinks invoiced the company for director fees of $Nil 
(2018: $245,400) via his entity Lawson Group Inc.

Lawson Lodge Country Estate (Macedon), a conference 
centre owed by Greg Jinks invoiced the company for 
$24,199. The transaction was on an arms length basis on 
normal commercial terms and conditions.



On 1 August 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of the Lumex Electrical business and assets under the Asset Sale
Agreement (ASA) between Scholz Industries Pty Ltd and Urban Lighting Group Pty Ltd, a wholly owned entity of Enevis Limited.

Details of the assets and liabilities acquired and consideration paid is as follows:

a. Consideration paid
In accordance with the terms of the ASA, the company issued
5,587,547 new shares in the Company (Up-Front Shares) to
the seller on 1 August 2018 at $0.20 per share equating to
$1,117,509.

b. Contingent consideration
The ASA provided for the issue of up to a further 4,000,000
fully paid ordinary shares in the capital of the Company over a
period of approximately 2 years subject to certain revenue and
EBITDA hurdles being satisfied.

The performance hurdles for issuance of shares for Tranche 1 
and Tranche 2 were not met for the financial year ended 30
June 2019 and consequently no shares are to be issued. 
Further, the company has made an assessment that the 30 
June 2020 hurdles are unlikely to be met and have not 
provided for any future payments.

Enevis has obtained a waiver from the Australian Securities 
Exchange to permit these tranches to be issued over this
period.

The fair value of this contingent consideration is $0.

Contribution since acquisition
Since acquisition date the Lumex business assets have 
contributed revenue of $4,651,597.

Transaction costs
The Group incurred legal costs associated with the ASA 
totalling $42,537 which have been expensed in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income.

NOTE 4: ACQUISITION OF CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Inventory

Plant and equipment

Entitlement to NuGreen shares

Employee entitlements

Goodwill

862,516

39,570

66,067

(13,713)

163,069

1,117,509Total consideration paid

DETAILS OF THE PURCHASE CONSIDERATION
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NOTE 5: INCOME AND EXPENSES

2019
$

2018
$

(A) SALES REVENUE

Revenue from services

Revenue from sale of goods

25,127,591

16,058,976

16,433,327

10,717,076

Total sales revenue

(B) OTHER INCOME

Interest revenue

Other income
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4,114

205,389

4

353

Total other income

41,186,567 27,150,403

209,503 357

Total revenue and other income 41,396,070 27,150,760

Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets:

Plant and equipment

Computer software

Development costs

154,223

51,382

46,814

142,041

6,884

-

(C) EXPENSES

252,419 148,925

582,826 641,567

Finance Costs:

Interest – other loans

Interest – Unlisted Convertible notes

Amortisation of deferred borrowing cost

556,958

19,836

6,032

583,470

40,000

18,097

Loss on sale of assets

Operating lease expenses

9,960

619,581

-

548,672

Employee Benefits:

Wages

Superannuation

10,564,396

855,354

6,217,379

566,461

Unearned revenue as recorded in Note 13, is recorded as a current liability and the underlying performance obligations are expected to
be completed within 12 months



NOTE 6: DIRECTOR’S AND EXECUTIVE’S COMPENSATION

NOTE 7: INCOME TAX

NOTE 8: CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(A) DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Trade debtors

Retention debtors

Allowance for credit losses

Contract assets

Other receivables

7,826,963

663,892

(40,300)

576,227

266,067

5,429,207

240,087

(1,253,620)

446,719

253,676

9,292,849 5,116,069

Movements in the allowance for credit losses were:

Opening balance at 1 July

Charge for the year

Amounts written off

(1,253,620)

(31,597)

1,244,917

(31,955)

(1,241,635)

19,970

(40,300) (1,253,620)

Profit / (loss) before income tax

Prima facie income tax payable / (benefit) on profit/(loss) before

Income tax at 27.5% (2018: 30%)

Add tax effect of:

Timing differences

Temporary differences and tax losses not brought to account as deferred tax assets

(a) Prima facie tax benefit/expense on profit/(loss) before income tax is reconciled to the income tax expense as follows:

19,167

5,271

(5,271)

-

(3,008,917)

(902,675)

-

902,675

Income tax expense – –

Short-term employee benefits

Long-term employee benefits

Post-employment Employee benefits

470,319

-

38,626

524,552

-

20,908

2019
$

2018
$

508,945 545,460

(B) REMUNERATION BY CATEGORY: DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
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Total

Not past due

Past due 0 - 30 days

Past due 31-60 days

Past due more than 60 days

2,192,492

1,653,776

107,540

1,475,399

-

-

-

(1,253,620)

5,429,207 (1,253,620)7,826,963 (40,300)

Trade receivables ageing analysis
at 30 June is

Closing balance at 30 June

Closing balance at 30 June

Gross
2018

Expected credit loss
2018 $

4,585,151

2,812,362

346,646

82,804

-

-

-

(40,300)

Gross
2019

Expected credit loss
2019 $

PETER JINKS
MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHAIRMAN

GREG JINKS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

THOMAS KRULIS
NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

TERENCE GRIGG
NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019



NOTE 9: INVENTORIES
2019

$
2018

$

Finished goods 5,336,670 2,618,280

At lower of cost and net realisable value

Carrying value as at 30 June

5,336,670 2,618,280

522,448 466,864

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amounts at the beginning and end of the period
Plant and equipment
Carrying value as at 1 July
Additions
Assets acquired on acquisition of Lumex (i)
Disposals
Assets disposed on sale of Dueltek
Depreciation expense

466,864

196,839

39,570

(26,602)

-

(154,223)

538,456

75,319

-

(521)

(4,349)

(142,041)

522,448

Carrying value as at 30 June

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amounts at the beginning and end of the period
Goodwill
Carrying value as at 1 July
Goodwill on acquisition of Lumex (i)
Goodwill on disposal of Dueltek

651,549

163,069

-

773,327

-

(121,778)

814,618 651,549

466,864

NOTE 10: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Current
Prepayments and other assets
Non Current
Bank Guarantees

230,387

159,999

93,002

119,025

NOTE 11: PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Plant and equipment
At cost
Accumulated depreciation

1,181,175

(658,727)

1,003,134

(536,270)

1,267,174 814,581

NOTE 12: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill at cost (a)
Brand name – Forlite
Computer software (b)
Development costs (c)

814,618

150,000

98,611

203,945

651,549

150,000

13,032

-

(i) Acquisition of Lumex – refer note 4

(i) Acquisition of Lumex – refer note 4

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

Carrying value as at 30 June

(b) Reconciliation of carrying amounts at the beginning and end of the period
Computer software
Carrying value as at 1 July
Software costs capitalised
Amortisation

13,032

136,961

(51,382)

14,084

5,832

(6,884)

98,611 13,032
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NOTE 13: CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

NOTE 14: BORROWINGS

3,313,008

48,552

-

1,662,639

113,479

1,000,000

Secured:
Bank and other loans (i)

Lease finance (ii)

Borrowing from Moller Volantor (iii)

-

-

400,000

200,000

Unsecured:
Convertible Notes – unlisted (v)

Borrowing from Moller Volantor (iv)

3,361,560 3,376,118

(i) Secured bank and other loans are secured by a fixed and floating charge over Enevis Limited, SKS Technologies Pty Ltd, Dueltek Pty Ltd and Urban Lighting
Group Pty Ltd.

(ii) Both current and non-current finance leases were secured by assets acquired utilising finance lease facilities.

(iii) Secured loan from Moller Volantor Pty Ltd, an entity related to Greg Jinks, is secured by a second ranking fixed and floating charge over Enevis Limited. This
loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 10% per annum payable monthly in arrears, to be repaid in full on or before 31 October 2020 (or earlier at the company’s
discretion).

(iv) Unsecured loan from Moller Volantor Pty Ltd, an entity related to Greg Jinks. This loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 10% per annum payable monthly in
arrears, to be repaid in full on 31 October 2020 (or earlier at the company’s discretion).

(v) The unlisted Convertible Notes were a 2 year financial instrument. These Convertible Notes bore interest at a fixed rate of 10% per annum payable quarterly in
arrears and were all converted to ordinary shares on 28 October 2018.

(a) Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms

Trade payables (a)
Accrued expenses
Other payables
Unearned revenue

6,617,726

283,657

522,941

795,297

3,886,548

387,237

432,271

690,474

8,219,621 5,396,530

2019
$

2018
$

(A) CURRENT

-

900,000

49,251

-

Secured:
Lease finance (ii)

Borrowing from Moller Volantor (iii)

300,000 300,000

Unsecured:
Borrowing from Moller Volantor (iv)

1,200,000 349,251

(B) NON CURRENT
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NOTE 12: INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Carrying value as at 30 June

(c) Reconciliation of carrying amounts at the beginning and end of the period
Development costs
Carrying value as at 1 July
Development costs capitalised
Amortisation

-

250,759

(46,814)

-

-

-

203,945 -



NOTE 15: R&D TAX INCENTIVE PAYABLE

NOTE 16: PROVISION – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Following realisation that the projects forming the basis of the Research & Development (R&D) expenditure claims for the 2015 
and 2016 financial years was not eligible in the first instance for R&D registration, Enevis made a voluntary disclosure to the 
Australian Taxation Office to amend its historic claims in full, requiring it to repay the cash refunds received totalling $2,332,681 
and associated interest charges. Broadly, this comprises repayment by instalments over a three (3) year timeframe ending May 
2022. As at 30 June 2019, the company has met its repayment obligations for the ensuing 12 month
period and accordingly the debt is classified as non-current.

Balance at 1 July

Provision for the year

Acquired on purchase of Lumex

Amounts used

627,456

745,583

13,713

(546,718)

520,989

555,226

-

(448,759)

2019
$

2018
$

840,034 627,456

R&D Tax Incentive Payable 2,112,613 2,524,819

2019
$

2018
$

Balance as at 30 June

(a) Current

(b) Non Current

-

2,112,613

2,524,819

-

2,112,613 2,524,819Balance as at 30 June

(a) Employee benefits – Current

(b) Employee benefits – Non Current

721,784

118,250

552,243

75,213

840,034 627,456
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NOTE 17: CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

Balance as at 1 July

Issue of shares to vendor of Lumex

Issue of shares for cash consideration

Issue of shares on debt to equity conversion

Cost of issue of shares

Issue of shares on conversion of Convertible Notes

14,419,075

1,117,509

3,250,000

200,000

(187,653)

400,000

14,277,752

-

172,000

-

(30,677)

-

19,198,931 14,419,075Balance as at 30 June

Balance as at 30 June

Balance as at 1 July

Issue of shares to vendor of Lumex

Issue of shares for cash consideration

Issue of shares on debt to equity conversion

Issue of shares on conversion of Convertible Notes

42,087,214

5,587,547

16,250,000

1,000,000

1,686,339

41,513,880

-

573,334

-

-

2019
No of Shares

2018
No of Shares

66,611,100 42,087,214

Capital Management

When managing capital, management’s objective is to ensure the consolidated entity continues to maintain optimal returns to
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. This is achieved through the monitoring of historical and forecast
performance and cash flows.

Rights of each type of share

Ordinary shares participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the parent entity in proportion to the number of
shares held. At shareholders meetings each ordinary share gives entitlement to one vote when a poll is called.

Options

The Company has nil options outstanding as at 30 June 2019.

NOTE 18: ACCUMULATED LOSSES

Balance at beginning of year

Net Profit / (Loss)

(17,462,521)

19,167

(14,453,604)

(3,008,917)

(17,443,354) (17,462,521)Balance at end of year

2019
$

2018
$

2019
$

2018
$
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NOTE 19: LOSS PER SHARE

Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share:

Profit / (Loss) from continuing operations

(Loss) from discontinued operations

19,167

-

(2,857,840)

(151,077)

19,167 (3,008,917)Profit / (Loss) used in the calculation of basic profit / (loss) per share

Profit / (Loss) used in calculating diluted earnings per share: 19,167 (3,008,917)

19,167 (3,008,917)Earnings used in calculating diluted earnings per share

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating basic earnings per share

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating diluted earnings per share

63,892,913

63,892,913

41,894,008

41,894,008

2019
No of Shares

2018
No of Shares

The following information has been extracted from the books and records of the parent entity and has been prepared in 
accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards

NOTE 20: PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURE

Current assets

Non current assets

5,309,150

61,591

1,472,457

45,869

2019
$

2018
$

5,370,741 1,518,326

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Total assets

Total liabilities

Current liabilities

Non current liabilities

592,093

3,023,071

4,556,856

4,916

3,615,164 4,561,772

Shareholders equity

(i) Issued capital

(ii) Accumulated losses

Net profit / (loss)

Total comprehensive income

19,198,931

(17,443,354)

19,167

19,167

(3,009,317)

(3,009,317)

GUARANTEES
Guarantees provided by parent entity in relation to the debts of the subsidiaries 3,236,856 2,299,394

14,419,075

(17,462,521)

2019
$

2018
$
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NOTE 21: COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE
Non-cancellable operating leases:

737,053 790,747

Leasing Arrangements

(i)  The consolidated entity leases a number of premises throughout Australia. The initial rental period of each lease agreement 
     varies between two and five years with renewal options ranging from none to five years. The majority of lease agreements 
     are subject to rental adjustments, some annually or bi-annually, in line with market rates, Consume Price Index or fixed 
     increases. The Company has provided bank guarantees for a value of $137,264 as rental bonds for leasing of premises.

(ii) Relates to leased motor vehicles, photocopier and printers, are for a fixed period, at a fixed rate with no renewal options.

449,124

161,205

126,724

462,681

295,292

32,774

Not later than one year

Later than one year but not later than two years

Later than two years but not later than five years

PROPERTY: (I)

NOTE 22: CONTROLLED ENTITIES

AustraliaEnevis Limited

612,100 422,239

1,349,153 1,212,986

145,012

181,901

285,187

92,411

91,381

238,447

Not later than one year

Later than one year but not later than two years

Later than two years but not later than five years

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT: (II)

Percentage 
Owned 2019

Name of Company

Parent Entity

Percentage 
Owned 2018

Country of
Incorporation

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

-

-

SKS Technologies Pty Ltd

SKS Technologies Construction Pty Ltd

Urban Lighting Group Pty Ltd

Dueltek Pty Ltd

Enegrow Pty Ltd *

Lumigrow Pty Ltd **

*       Enegrow Pty Ltd was incorporated on 5 April 2019

**     Lumigrow Pty Ltd was incorporated on 5 April 2019

Controlled Entities
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NOTE 23: STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(A) RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank 679,878 2,907

679,878 2,907

Maximum available subject to (c) below

Bank and other loans 4,000,000 4,000,000

(B) FINANCING FACILITIES:

4,000,000 4,000,000

Bank and other loans (i) 3,313,008 1,662,639

(C) FACILITIES IN USE AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

3,313,008 1,662,639

(i) At the date of this report, the financier continues to provide debtor finance facilities. Debtor finance are secured against the trade receivables.

Net Profit / (loss) after income tax

Loss on sale of assets

Depreciation & amortisation expense

Amortisation of deferred borrowing costs

Impairment expense

Finance costs capitalised

19,167

9,960

252,419

6,032

174,143

69,466

(3,008,917)

137,242

148,925

18,097

1,549,577

132,251

(D) RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES TO NET PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER INCOME TAX

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows are reconciled to the related 
items in the statement of financial position as follows:

2019
$

2018
$

Change in net assets and liabilities

(Increase)/decrease in assets:

   Current receivables

   Current inventories

   Other current assets

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:

   Trade and other payables

   Provisions

Net cash (used in) operating activities

(4,176,780)

(2,030,017)

(151,992)

2,856,760

198,865

(695,239)

(315,698)

(79,195)

1,486,465

118,002

(2,771,977) (508,490)
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NOTE 24: DISPOSAL OF BUSINESS
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(I) FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

Sales revenue

Expenses

Other income

-

-

-

655,755

(687,484)

17,894

- (13,835)

Net cash used in operating activities

Net cash from investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

-

-

-

(114,489)

787,642

(704,350)

(II) CASH FLOW INFORMATION

-

Consideration received or receivable

Less: Net assets disposed of

Less: transaction costs to complete sale of business

-

-

-

994,318

(1,114,176)

(17,384)

Loss on disposal of discontinued operation before tax

Income tax expense

-

-

(137,242)

-

-

(31,197)

DETAILS OF DISCONTINUED OPERATION DISPOSED

On 15 December 2017, the Company sold of its Dueltek Distribution business and associated business assets. The results of
the discontinued operations for the current and comparative period are presented below:

Loss before income tax

- (137,242)Loss on disposal of discontinued operation after tax

Income tax expense - -

- (13,835)Loss after income tax from discontinued operations

Loss on disposal of the discontinued operations before income tax

Income tax expense

-

-

(137,242)

-

- (137,242)Loss on disposal of the discontinued operations after income tax

- (151,077)Loss from discontinued operation

Net cash flow

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

2019
$

2018
$



Details of the significant accounting policies and methods 
adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which revenues and expenses 
are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset,
financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 1 
to the financial statements.

NOTE 25: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest 
rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with a
floating interest rate. The group monitors its exposure to 
interest rate risk as part of its capital and cash management. 
Refer Note 14 for more details.

Cash flow interest rate risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will not be able to meet 
its financial obligation as they fall due. The entity’s approach in
managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due under both normal and
stressed conditions. The entity manages liquidity risk by 
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and 
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Liquidity risk

(A) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank 
loans, finance leases and cash. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s 
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and 
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which 
arise directly from its operations.

It is the policy of the consolidated entity to regularly review 
foreign currency exposures. The degree to which the foreign
exchange risk is managed will vary depending on 
circumstances that prevail at the time the risk is known or 
anticipated. There are no foreign currency contracts 
outstanding at the reporting date (2018: Nil).

The group hold no financial assets or liabilities at fair value.

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on 
its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
consolidated entity. The consolidated entity has adopted the 
policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and
obtaining sufficient collateral or other security where 
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss 
from defaults.

The consolidated entity does not have any significant 
concentrations of credit risk (on a net basis after recognising 
impairment losses) that arise from exposures to a single 
debtor or to a group of debtors having a similar characteristic 
such that their ability to meet their obligations is expected to 
be affected similarly by changes in economic or other 
conditions.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the 
financial statements, net of any allowance for credit losses, 
represents the consolidated entity’s maximum exposure to 
credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral 
or other security obtained.

Credit risk

The entity has performed a sensitivity analysis relating to its 
exposure to interest rate risk and foreign currency risk at 
balance date. This sensitivity analysis concluded there would 
be no material impact on fair values of financial assets and 
liabilities.

Sensitivity Analysis
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Auditors of the Parent Entity and Group entities
Amounts received or due and receivable by auditors for:

NOTE 26: REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

NOTE 27: EVENTS AFTER THE
BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Group made a drawdown from Moller Volantor Pty Ltd, an 
entity related to Greg Jinks, under the pre existing secured 
and unsecured loan agreements (as detailed in note 14) to the 
amount of $200,000.

Other than the above, the directors are not aware of any other 
matters or circumstances which have occurred subsequent to
balance date, that may significantly affect the operations of 
the consolidated entity in future financial periods.

NOTE 28: OPERATING SEGMENT
The Group operates predominantly in Australia, in the lighting 
and audio-visual markets which is regarded as a single 
segment, hence there is no information on operating 
segments provided in this report.

2019
$ 

Audit or review of the
financial report of the entity

Taxation services

112,760

2018
$

96,500

60,570 60,000

173,330 156,500
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The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities 
recorded in the financial statements approximates their
respective fair values, determined in accordance with the 
accounting policies disclosed in Note 1 to the financial 
statements.

(E) FAIR VALUE



DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

The directors declare that

1.   In the director’s opinion the financial statements and 

     notes thereto, as set out on pages 35 to 62 are in 

     accordance with the � � �� � �� � �� 
 � �� � � �� ��� � including:

2. In the directors’ opinion there are reasonable 

      grounds to believe that Enevis Limited will be able to 

      pay its debts as and when they become due and 

      payable.

This declaration has been made after receiving the 

declarations required to be made by the chief executive 

officer and chief financial officer to the directors in 

accordance with sections 295A of the � � �� � �� � �� 
 � �� � � �
� ���  for the financial year ending 30 June 2019.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution 

of the directors.

(a) complying with Accounting Standards and the 

     � � �� � �� � �� 
 � �� � � 
 �� � �� 
 � �� ��� , and other

     mandatory professional reporting requirements;

(b) as stated in Note 1(a) the consolidated financial   

     statements also comply with International    

     Financial Reporting Standards; and

(c) giving a true and fair view of the financial     

     position of the consolidated entity as at 30 June 

     2019 and of its performance for the year ended 

     on that date.

Peter Jinks
Chairman and Managing Director
30 August 2019

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
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ENEVIS LIMITED 

ABN 24 004 554 929 

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 
TO THE DIRECTORS OF ENEVIS LIMITED 

An independent Victorian Partnership ABN 27 975 255 196  Pitcher Partners is an association of independent firms 
Level 13, 664 Collins Street, Docklands VIC 3008      Melbourne  |  Sydney  |  Perth  |  Adelaide  |  Brisbane  |  Newcastle 
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation  An independent member of Baker Tilly International 

In relation to the independent audit for the year ended 30 June 2019, to the best of my knowledge and 
belief there have been: 

(i) No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001; and

(ii) No contraventions of APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.

This declaration is in respect of Enevis Limited and the entities it controlled during the year. 

F V RUSSO PITCHER PARTNERS 
Partner Melbourne 

30th August 2019 
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ENEVIS LIMITED 
ABN 24 004 554 929 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF ENEVIS LIMITED 

An independent Victorian Partnership ABN 27 975 255 196  Pitcher Partners is an association of independent firms 
Level 13, 664 Collins Street, Docklands VIC 3008       Melbourne  |  Sydney  |  Perth  |  Adelaide  |  Brisbane  |  Newcastle 
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation          An independent member of Baker Tilly International  

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial report of Enevis Limited (the Company) and its controlled entities (the Group), 
which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019, the consolidated statement 
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the 
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including 
a summary of significant accounting policies, and the directors’ declaration.  

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, 
including: 

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2019 and of its financial
performance for the year then ended; and

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of 
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the 
Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards 
Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to 
the directors of the Company, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this auditor’s 
report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.  

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 

We draw attention to Note 1(e) in the financial report, which indicates that the Group had cash outflows from 
operating activities for the year ended 30 June 2019 of $2,771,977 (30 June 2018: $508,490). 

As stated in Note 1(e), these events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1 (e), indicate 
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial report of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters.  
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ENEVIS LIMITED 
ABN 24 004 554 929 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF ENEVIS LIMITED 

An independent Victorian Partnership ABN 27 975 255 196  Pitcher Partners is an association of independent firms 
Level 13, 664 Collins Street, Docklands VIC 3008       Melbourne  |  Sydney  |  Perth  |  Adelaide  |  Brisbane  |  Newcastle 
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation          An independent member of Baker Tilly International  

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Going Concern basis of accounting 

Refer to Note 1(e) 

The Group had cash out flows from operating 
activities of $2,771,977. 

The Directors have continued to adopt the going 
concern basis of accounting in preparing the 
financial statements, having taken account of; 

- Budget and cash flow projections which are
based on increasing revenues;
- The current growth phase of the technology
division and expected future growth;
- The availability of ongoing finance facilities;
- The execution of agreement with the Australian
Tax Office for repayment of Research and
Development debt over a three (3) year
timeframe

We consider the application of the going concern 
basis of accounting to be a key audit matter 
because of the range of potential indicators of 
uncertainty as outlined above, and the potential 
impact of applying the going concern basis of 
accounting incorrectly which could result in a 
significant impact on the presentation of the 
financial statements. 

Our procedures included, amongst others: 

 Obtaining an understanding of the controls
relevant to determining the applicability of the
going concern basis of accounting; and

 Considering the adequacy of the financial report
disclosures.

In relation to the Director’s cash flow projections, we 
paid particular attention to the key assumptions and 
judgements made by the Directors.  Our procedures in 
relation to these cash flow projections included, 
amongst others: 

 Confirming that the budget and cash flow forecast
prepared by management was approved by the
Board;

 Appling sensitivities to the forecasts, in particular,
key assumptions and judgements in relation to
expenses and forecast growth in revenues;

 Reviewing terms and availability of debt and
finance facilities and checking compliance
therewith, as well as applying sensitivities to
timing of forecast debt repayments.
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ENEVIS LIMITED 
ABN 24 004 554 929 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF ENEVIS LIMITED 

An independent Victorian Partnership ABN 27 975 255 196  Pitcher Partners is an association of independent firms 
Level 13, 664 Collins Street, Docklands VIC 3008       Melbourne  |  Sydney  |  Perth  |  Adelaide  |  Brisbane  |  Newcastle 
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation          An independent member of Baker Tilly International  

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Revenue Recognition 

Refer to Note 1(n) and Note 5 

The Group’s revenue is primarily derived from the 
sale of products and provision of services in 
relation to audio-visual and lighting projects. 

Certain revenue is recognised based on the stage 
of completion of individual contracts, which is 
calculated based on the proportion of total costs 
incurred at the reporting date compared to 
management’s estimation of total costs of the 
contract. The accurate recognition of this revenue 
is dependent on management estimates of the 
stage of completion of the contract. 

We consider revenue is a key audit matter 
because of its significance to profit, the high 
volume of revenue transactions associated with 
revenue and for certain contracts the 
management judgement that is required in 
recognising revenue. 

Our procedures included, amongst others: 

 Obtaining an understanding of the controls
relevant to revenue recognition

 Reviewing and testing a sample of journals
impacting revenue

 For a sample of revenue transactions from
provision of services and sale of products, testing
to supporting documentation including sales
invoices, external order documentation and/or
receipt of customer payments including assessing
whether revenue has been recognised in the
correct period

 For a sample of revenue transactions for which
revenue is recognised on a proportion of total
costs incurred basis, testing that the calculations
of costs incurred and costs to complete were
based on support by:

- assessing the Group’s estimated costs to
complete by analysing any subsequent
changes to cost estimates post year end;
and

- assessing management’s estimates of
total contract costs and recalculating the
stage of completion based on actual
costs incurred to date

 Assessing the adequacy of disclosure in the
financial statements.
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ENEVIS LIMITED 
ABN 24 004 554 929 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF ENEVIS LIMITED 

An independent Victorian Partnership ABN 27 975 255 196  Pitcher Partners is an association of independent firms 
Level 13, 664 Collins Street, Docklands VIC 3008       Melbourne  |  Sydney  |  Perth  |  Adelaide  |  Brisbane  |  Newcastle 
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation          An independent member of Baker Tilly International  

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Carrying value of Goodwill 

Refer to Note 12 

At 30 June 2019 the Group’s statement of financial 
position includes goodwill amounting to $814,618 
which related to one cash generating units (CGU).  

The appropriate identification of the CGU is 
considered a key audit matter because of the 
management assumption and estimation required to 
make this assessment. 

The assessment of potential impairment of the 
goodwill balance incorporates management’s 
assumptions and estimation in respect of factors 
such as: 

 Forecast revenue
 Forecast expenses
 Forecast capital expenditure
 Economic assumptions such as, discount

rate, growth rate and terminal value growth
rate.

A key audit matter for us was whether the Group’s 
value-in-use model for impairment of goodwill 
included appropriate consideration and support for 
significant estimates and assumptions and the 
selection of key external and internal inputs. 

We consider the carrying value of goodwill a key 
audit matter because of the degree of subjectivity of 
estimates and assumptions involved in measuring the 
carrying value. 

Our procedures included, amongst others: 

• Assessing management’s determination of
the appropriate CGU based on our
understanding of the nature of the Group’s
business and the economic environment in
which it operates. Also reviewing the
internal reporting of the Group to assess
how earnings streams and groups of assets
are monitored and reported;

• Evaluating management’s relevant controls
and processes regarding valuation of the
CGU to determine any potential impairment
including the procedures around the
preparation and review of the associated
cash flow forecasts;

• Challenging management’s assumptions
and estimates used to determine the
recoverable value of goodwill, including
those relating to forecast revenue, expenses
and capital expenditure;

• Checking the mathematical accuracy of the
cash flow model;

• Agreeing relevant data in the cash flow
model to the latest forecast;

• Assessing the historical accuracy of
forecasting by the Group;

• Performing sensitivity analysis in respect of
the discount rate, growth rate and terminal
value growth rate assumptions; and

• Assessing the adequacy of disclosure in the
financial statements.

Other information 

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Director’s report for the year ended 30 June 2019, but does not include the financial report and 
our auditor’s report thereon which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the Chairman & 
Managing Directors’ report, FY19 reflections & project insights, which is expected to be made available to us 
after that date.  

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and 
fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such 
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that 
gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic 
alternative but to do so.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement 
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial report. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF ENEVIS LIMITED 

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit.  

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the financial report of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication.  

Report on the Remuneration Report 

Opinion on the Remuneration Report 

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 32 to 34 of the directors’ report for the year 
ended 30 June 2019. In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Enevis Limited, for the year ended 30 
June 2019, complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.  

Responsibilities 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration Report 
in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.  

F V RUSSO PITCHER PARTNERS 
Partner Melbourne 

30th August 2019 
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Statement of security holders as at 23 August 2019

SHAREHOLDER ANALYSIS AND OTHER STOCK EXCHANGE REQUIREMENTS

1 - 1,000

1,001 - 5,000

5,001 - 10,000

10,001 - 100,000

100,001 and over

Holding less than a marketable parcel

Voting rights – Each ordinary share carries one vote.

228

432

(A)  DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDERS BY SIZES OF HOLDINGS

Total  

Mr Greg Jinks + Mrs Dorothy Jinks <The G D Super Fund A/c>

Scholz Industries Pty Ltd

Sandhurst Trustees Ltd <JMFG Consol A/c>

Volantor Superannuation Fund Pty Ltd <Volantor Superannuation Fund>

Manisa Nominees Pty Limited<Lasky Super Fund A/C>

Fareview Pty Ltd <The A&M Family A/c>

Edward Peter Goodwin <Goodwin Family A/c>

Harrington Partners Fund 1 Pty Ltd <Harrington Part Fund 1 A/c>

Bentmont Pty Ltd

Prima Growth Fund Pty Ltd

Bickham Court Superannuation Pty Ltd <Bickham Court Super Fund A/C>

Mr Peter Raymond Jinks + Mrs Velda Jinks

Miss Kristie Jinks + Mr Matthew Jinks + Miss Lisa Jinks <PV Super Fund A/c>

Cartman & Co Pty Ltd

Kinship Nominees Pty Ltd <Malek Super Fund A/c>

Bond Street Custodians Limited <BKOHN - V04155 A/c>

Jireb Pty Ltd <M & A Super Fund A/C>

Greg Electrical Contractors Pty Ltd

Green Family Pty Ltd <Green Family Super Fund2 A/c>

Incentive Entertainment Partners Pty Ltd

Total for top 20

Total Other investor

Grand Total

6,144,167

5,587,547

5,267,491

4,720,000

4,143,333

2,500,000

2,500,000

1,688,855

1,608,296

1,488,668

1,341,666

1,299,167

1,086,000

1,000,000

955,714

910,000

876,959

875,000

833,333

833,333

45,659,529

20,951,571

66,611,100

9.22

8.39

7.91

7.09

6.22

3.75

3.75

2.54

2.41

2.23

2.01

1.95

1.63

1.50

1.43

1.37

1.32

1.31

1.25

1.25

68.55

31.45

100.00

176

65

24

85

82

Number Percentage

(C)  SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS PER SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER ADVICES HELD AT 23 AUGUST 2019

(D)  SECURITIES SUBJECT TO VOLUNTARY ESCROW

Shareholder

Mr Greg Jinks

Mr Peter Jinks

Mr Erik Scholz

JM Financial Group Ltd and 

No Plan B Pty Ltd

Manisa Nominees Pty Limited

The shareholding of Scholz Industries Pty Ltd is subject to an escrow arrangement until 31 July 2020.

7,019,167

6,019,167

 6,012,547

5,392,185

4,143,333

Number of Ordinary Shares to which Person EntitledName
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(B) TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

(E)  UNQUOTED EQUITY SECURITIES



ELECTRICAL & ENERGY 

EFFICIENT TECHNOLOGIES 

& SOLUTIONS

W W W . E N E V I S . C O M . A U

ENERGY WITH VISION




